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         2                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Good morning.  

         3     Today we have a two part hearing.  We are here to 

         4     discuss the Mayor's Management Report as it relates to 

         5     the Department of Consumer Affairs and its mission of 

         6     protecting New York consumers.  

         7                  Also, we will consider Intro No. 852, which 

         8     would extend the SARD pilot program for another 18 

         9     months and permanently prohibit motorists from calling 

        10     tow companies of their choice to accident scenes.  We 

        11     have a lot of questions on both aspects of the hearing 

        12     so I would like to dive right in.

        13                  And I understand, Commissioner, that you 

        14     have a scheduling conflict and will be unable to stay 

        15     with us through the towing period.

        16                  But I would like to ask just one question 

        17     before I go into the MMR.  I know you're aware that the 

        18     DMV told committee staff that the data on the report on 

        19     the number of tow truck related accidents were 

        20     incomplete and would probably show no decrease in 

        21     accidents since the start of the program.

        22                  In light of this, do you still think the 

        23     elimination of the call-your-own-tow option and the 

        24     extension of the pilot are justified?

        25                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  Good morning, 
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         2     Madam Chairperson and members of the committee.

         3                  You're quite right, the information that 

         4     the department supplied to this committee was erroneous 

         5     in one respect and, as you correctly noted, the 

         6     information that was available to us at the time upon 

         7     which we based certain conclusions and recommendations 

         8     was incomplete.

         9                  Notwithstanding that, the department still 

        10     stands behind the program and believes that in the final 

        11     analysis, that it does contribute to resolving this very 

        12     serious problem.

        13                  I would also note that the response time 

        14     under this program, that is, tow trucks responding to 

        15     the scenes of accidents, is far better than might 

        16     otherwise be the case if this program were not in place. 

        17                  I should tell you that my understanding is 

        18     that the representatives from the Police Department will 

        19     be joining us later because I believe that they would 

        20     like to weigh on in this issue, and perhaps in terms of 

        21     that, while they may not have much more empirical 

        22     evidence to support the program, I believe they have a 

        23     tremendous amount of anecdotal evidence and experience 

        24     based upon what their police officers have found in 

        25     regards to these programs which will validate the 
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         2     support for this program, both from the Department of 

         3     Consumer Affairs and the Police Department.

         4                  So, as I said earlier, notwithstanding the 

         5     fact that the numbers we supplied with regard to 

         6     accidents was incomplete, we do stand behind this 

         7     program.

         8                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Okay, thank you 

         9     very much.

        10                  Now we're going to go right into the MMR.

        11                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  Again, thank 

        12     you for opportunity to testify.  As you know, the 

        13     Mayor's Management Report is an important management 

        14     tool for the Department of Consumer Affairs in several 

        15     ways.  First, MMR information is used by managers to 

        16     evaluate programs, initiatives and staff performance, 

        17     and to formulate strategies for service improvements 

        18     and new initiatives.  

        19                  Second, preparation of the MMR is an 

        20     exercise that increases accountability and reporting 

        21     accuracy and helps us focus on department goals.  The 

        22     need to refine performance measures and to explain 

        23     deviations from planned service levels gives managers a 

        24     better grasp of the department's overall effectiveness 

        25     and of factors affecting performance.
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         2                  Additionally, the opportunity to present 

         3     news about successful initiatives in the MMR rewards 

         4     managers with recognition for achievements and 

         5     establishes expectations for continued improvement in 

         6     the future.

         7                  DCA managers use MMR information in 

         8     strategy planning, in evaluating the performance of 

         9     units and individuals, in responding to information 

        10     requests from elected officials and communities, and in 

        11     budget analysis.  We value the MMR as a way of 

        12     sharpening our focus on important performance indicators 

        13     and as a planning tool.

        14                  Turning now to DCA's performance in fiscal 

        15     year 1996, I believe it is fair to say that there has 

        16     been improvement throughout the agency.  I would like to 

        17     speak chiefly about some of DCA's accomplishments in 

        18     fiscal '96.  

        19                  At the beginning of fiscal year '96 we 

        20     conducted an investigation of home improvements 

        21     contractors accused of unscrupulous practices that 

        22     victimized homeowners.  Undertaken in cooperation with 

        23     the Police Department and the Department of Housing 

        24     Preservation and Development, the enforcement initiative 

        25     resulted in the issuance of 45 violations and the 
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         2     confiscation of vehicles of 25 contractors.  

         3                  As you may remember, DCA also undertook an 

         4     enforcement sweep of salad bars and delicatessens in May 

         5     of 1996.  The most noticeable result of that enforcement 

         6     action was a $100,000 fine levied against a salad bar 

         7     that had repeatedly been cited for weights and measures 

         8     violations.

         9                  In April we took legal action against a 

        10     furniture company for egregious violations of city, 

        11     state and federal laws.  The company in question preyed 

        12     mostly upon low income New Yorkers by failing to deliver 

        13     furniture that had been paid for, or by making only 

        14     partial deliveries, and for engaging in unconscionable 

        15     and threatening collection practices.  DCA's legal 

        16     division concluded a settlement agreement with the 

        17     company that included a substantial fine and restitution 

        18     to customers of thousands of dollars. 

        19                  Parenthetically, I will mention that DCA 

        20     receives more complaints about furniture stores than 

        21     about any other category of business, and that is why we 

        22     have submitted legislation to the Council to mandate the 

        23     licensing of furniture and appliance stores.  

        24                  The other four categories that generate the 

        25     most consumer complaints are, as you know, electronics 
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         2     stores, home improvement contractors, debt collectors 

         3     and used car dealers.  Of these five types of 

         4     businesses, only furniture stores are not yet licensed 

         5     by DCA.  We regard the passage of our bill to do so  --  

         6     Intro 650  --  as a top priority of our consumer 

         7     protection program.

         8                  Also in fiscal year '96 we conducted the 

         9     "Three Puffs and You're Out" enforcement operation 

        10     against merchants selling tobacco products to minors.  

        11     We issued about 363 citations for such violations and 

        12     secured the suspension of 13 tobacco vendor licenses, 

        13     the first time the tobacco product regulatory act of 

        14     1992 was successfully invoked.

        15                  If we look at DCA's Consumer Services 

        16     Division, we can see that fiscal year '96 brought many 

        17     changes and great improvement.  In the last year we have 

        18     revamped Consumer Services, greatly improving its 

        19     functioning.  

        20                  The division fielded nearly 177,000 

        21     consumer requests for information in FY '96, 25 percent 

        22     above plan.  This was in large part due to the 

        23     implementation of the interactive voice response system.  

        24     As is not uncommon with newly installed technology, we 

        25     experienced some operational problems with IVR.  But we 
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         2     are moving quickly to remedy them and to upgrade the 

         3     system.  Our enhanced IVR system will be in place by 

         4     December 1996.

         5                  Our Consumer Services Division has also 

         6     developed a referral guide and a consumer services 

         7     manual to facilitate timely and correct responses to a 

         8     consumer calls.  

         9                  In fiscal year '96, Consumer Services 

        10     resolved over 7,000 complaints, including some 350 from 

        11     the previous year.  The improvement was largely due to a 

        12     very successful management initiative that instituted a 

        13     case management approach for resolving consumer 

        14     complaints.  Consumer restitution in fiscal year '96 

        15     reached $1.43 million, up 31 percent from fiscal year 

        16     '95.

        17                  Overall, DCA received fewer consumer 

        18     complaints in fiscal year '96 than anticipated.  We 

        19     believe that this is due to our aggressive outreach 

        20     campaign to business.  We believe that educating 

        21     business people about their responsibilities vis-a-vis 

        22     consumers and bringing them into compliance with 

        23     licensing laws results in fewer consumer complaints.  

        24                  We anticipate that consumer complaints will 

        25     further decline, as we continue our proactive 
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         2     educational efforts.  

         3                  The big news from DCA's Licensing Division 

         4     is that the citywide licensing center will open in 

         5     November of 1996.  It will provide one-stop shopping for 

         6     business people who want to apply for city licenses and 

         7     pay fees or fines, including those due the Environmental 

         8     Control Board.  

         9                  The licensing center will conform to the 

        10     new citywide customer service standards regarding such 

        11     things as signs, seating and keeping applicants informed 

        12     of approximate waiting times.

        13                  The use of new technologies will enhance 

        14     the licensing center's functioning and promises to make 

        15     it a state of the art facility.  The technological 

        16     enhancements include automatic queuing, on-line 

        17     processing license applications, microfiche readers to 

        18     supply certificates of occupancy from the Department of 

        19     Buildings, digitized identification photos and 

        20     fingerprints, and on-line access to translators for 

        21     non-English speaking applicants.

        22                  DCA's Enforcement Division has 

        23     significantly increased its productivity in the last

        24     year.  Citations for violations of the licensing laws 

        25     rose from 8,000 to over 14,000.  And inspections for 
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         2     compliance with the weights and measures and consumer 

         3     protection laws increased by more than 20 percent.  Our 

         4     weights and measures squad issued over 9,000 violations 

         5     in fiscal year '96, 32 percent more than in fiscal year 

         6     '95.

         7                  Our Enforcement Division has instituted an 

         8     early warning program.  A DCA inspector who finds a 

         9     first time violation of certain laws  --  early warning 

        10     applies to the weights and measures laws and to certain  

        11     licensing requirements  --  can issue a warning to a 

        12     business rather than a citation.  If during a subsequent 

        13     inspection the same violation is found, the business is 

        14     issued a citation.  

        15                  Although early warning has somewhat reduced 

        16     the dollar amounts of DCA's collectibles, we would 

        17     rather work with businesses to bring them into 

        18     compliance with the various consumer protection laws 

        19     than establish an unnecessarily adversarial 

        20     relationship, and we believe we can substantially make 

        21     up for loss of revenue by bringing more businesses in 

        22     compliance with the licensing law. 

        23                   In general, I am pleased with the pace of 

        24     our reorganization at the Department of Consumer Affairs 

        25     and believe that we are on the right track.  DCA is a 
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         2     smaller department than it used to be, but I believe 

         3     that the efficiencies we are instituting in the way we 

         4     work are enabling us to fulfill our mission of 

         5     protecting New York City's consumers and educating the 

         6     business community.

         7                  I would be pleased to answer any questions 

         8     you may have.

         9                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  And I certainly 

        10     have questions.

        11                  And I want to recognize my colleague, 

        12     Council Member Eristoff, who is with us, and I'm sure in 

        13     the course of the hearing we'll be joined by the rest of 

        14     the Council Members.

        15                  I'm going to ask some questions and if you 

        16     have some questions I'll turn it over to you.

        17                  The first, only 64 percent of the 

        18     complaints you have resolved have been resolved in favor 

        19     of the consumer.  Please explain why this number is so 

        20     low.

        21                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  Complaints are 

        22     mediated on a case by case basis.  Complaints, as you 

        23     know, come in with respect to different categories from 

        24     different consumers and really without looking at each 

        25     and every single case it's difficult to say whether a 64 
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         2     percent disposition in favor of a consumer is a low 

         3     number.  

         4                  Sometimes we don't get enough information 

         5     to adequately mediate a complaint.  It may be that some 

         6     categories are more difficult to mediate than others, 

         7     but that is something that we will certainly take a look 

         8     at.

         9                  As I said, it's difficult to say whether a 

        10     raw number, 64 percent, is necessarily high or low.  I 

        11     think perhaps what needs to be done is a case by case 

        12     analysis or a category by category analysis as opposed 

        13     to an entire universe analysis.

        14                  COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  If I may just ask 

        15     a follow-up question, would it be fair to say that this 

        16     is 64 percent of the complaints that come into the 

        17     department, or is it 64 percent of the complaints that 

        18     actually go to mediation?  If it's the former, then the 

        19     percentage that are resolved in favor of the consumer 

        20     would actually be quite high with respect to the latter 

        21     pool.

        22                  Do you understand what I'm saying?  In 

        23     other words, this may be artificially deflated because 

        24     we're talking about a larger pool and it will get to the 

        25     mediation stage.  I don't know whether that's the case 
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         2     or not but it's worth asking.  The universe is the cases 

         3     that actually go to the mediation stage.

         4                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  My 

         5     understanding is that the number that's being referred 

         6     to are those that go to mediation, and what I'm saying 

         7     is that it may be that some categories are more likely 

         8     to be mediated in favor of the consumer than other 

         9     categories.  

        10                  And without looking at sort of a case by 

        11     case analysis as to whether we get all of the 

        12     information, whether the consumers in fact follow up, 

        13     that is something that has a bearing on how a case my be 

        14     mediated.

        15                  COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  Thank you.

        16                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  The MMR indicates 

        17     that the consumer services unit had 31 full time 

        18     employees handling complaints in fiscal 1996.  DCA 

        19     budget documents show only 25 budgeted positions for 

        20     complaints, of which only 17 are filled.  Where can we 

        21     see the MMR full time employee number in the budget?  

        22                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  The number of 

        23     mediators in the Department of Consumer Affairs is 23.  

        24     I don't know where the 17 number comes from.  There are 

        25     23 people who are on line as mediators.  We have two 
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         2     personnel who are serving in an administrative 

         3     position.  The other six personnel are people who do 

         4     community outreach.  Although they do not mediate cases, 

         5     they do reach out to the business community and to 

         6     consumers and serve in more of an educational capacity.

         7                  MR. P. BRUNO:  Peter Bruno from the Finance 

         8     Division

         9                  Just out of curiosity, there are six 

        10     community outreach and there are two others.  Those are 

        11     clerical positions or something?

        12                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  One is a 

        13     clerical and the other is an inspector.  

        14                  MR. P. BRUNO:  Where in the budget is the 

        15     first?  Can we actually see the numbers that you report 

        16     in the MMR?  Because that's the question.

        17                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  We'll provide 

        18     you with that information.

        19                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Why does the MMR 

        20     have no targets for FY '97 for overall complaint 

        21     processing time and overall complaint resolution time? 

        22                  The third question.

        23                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  As part of the 

        24     reengineering process we have an opportunity to take a 

        25     look at the nature of the complaints the department 
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         2     receives, and after undertaking this analysis we've 

         3     determined that there are some complaints or a number of 

         4     complaints that just can't possibly be resolved within 

         5     30 days, and I'd like to give you an example.  

         6                  A home improvement contractor complaint is 

         7     a very labor intensive complaint that requires a 

         8     tremendous amount of investigation.  It is not merely 

         9     the kind of complaint that you can mediate over the 

        10     phone.  It requires sending an inspector to someone's 

        11     home, a certified inspector, to inspect the premises, to 

        12     take photographs, to mediate a complaint that usually 

        13     involves thousands upon thousands of dollars between the 

        14     contractor and a very disgruntled and unhappy 

        15     homeowner.  And as much as we would like to mediate that 

        16     complaint or all complaints within 30 days, we've come 

        17     to the realization that that is an impossibility.

        18                  There are other complaints that by virtue 

        19     of the fact that under law a business person has 20 days 

        20     in which to respond to a complaint, just the mere fact 

        21     that a business person takes advantage of what the law 

        22     allows him, the 20 days, there again, those are the 

        23     kinds of complaints that could not possibly be resolved 

        24     within 30 days.  

        25                  And the fact of the matter is that as much 
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         2     as we would like, we think that that's an 

         3     impossibility.  What we are undertaking to do is trying 

         4     to identify which categories of complaints can be 

         5     mediated within or resolved within a 30 day period and 

         6     see if we can meet those targets or those goals.    

         7                  But to lump all of those categories, some 

         8     that are much more complex and labor intensive than 

         9     others, and to say that the goal is to solve all of 

        10     those complaints within 30 days, is unrealistic and for 

        11     that reason it's been left out of the '97 MMR as an 

        12     indicator.  What we are undertaking is to see what 

        13     categories of complaints can possibly be resolved within 

        14     30 days and try to meet those goals.

        15                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  But the reality of 

        16     that is that there is no indicator and in releasing 

        17     reports there's no goals, there's nothing to stand 

        18     behind.  And it seems like if it's an estimation or 

        19     approximation of something to be done, but to leave 

        20     something just out  -- 

        21                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  Well, we're 

        22     leaving it out because there's no point in sticking to 

        23     something that is an unrealistic goal.  We would be 

        24     happy to share with the Council once we've identified 

        25     those categories that we think we can resolve within 30 
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         2     days, to share that with the Council.  And of course you 

         3     can monitor and see whether in fact we are meeting those 

         4     goals and those targets.  

         5                  Right now we are undertaking that analysis 

         6     and it would be unfair to say that a home improvement 

         7     contract could be resolved in 30 days when I think 

         8     everyone knows that's just not possible.  

         9                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  That's possible but 

        10     I would like to work along on that goal because I feel 

        11     that leaves a big gap in the information that's put 

        12     forth to us.

        13                  And on consumer complaints I want to ask 

        14     one more question on that, and I have questions on the 

        15     youth part of it.  And if my colleague has any questions 

        16     to ask we will hear from him next.

        17                  How does DCA expect to resolve 8,300 

        18     complaints if you only plan to receive 5,900 and the MMR 

        19     states there is no backlog? 

        20                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I'm sorry, 

        21     would you please show me the document you're referring 

        22     to, please.

        23                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  The MMR.  

        24                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  Is there a 

        25     page?
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         2                  You're right, it's difficult to resolve 

         3     more complaints than you receive, and that's a number 

         4     that really should be readjusted.

         5                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Thank you.

         6                  I'm going to jump around a little bit.  How 

         7     many undercover sweeps have been conducted in the past 

         8     fiscal year in relation to the youth, with "Three Puffs 

         9     and You're Out"?

        10                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  During this 

        11     fiscal year we've conducted five undercover sweeps under 

        12     the "Three Puffs and You're Out" initiative.  I can tell 

        13     you that the most recent initiative was conducted I 

        14     believe this September and we got some rather disturbing 

        15     results.  It was maybe 58 of the stores that we targeted 

        16     did sell tobacco products to minors.  

        17                  Some of them were recidivists and we've 

        18     referred those cases to the Department of Finance so we 

        19     can take appropriate action and suspend and revoke the 

        20     license of those establishments for the sale of tobacco.

        21                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  I'm happy to hear 

        22     that.

        23                  How many undercover sweeps are planned for 

        24     fiscal year '97?

        25                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO: That is 
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         2     something that we are reviewing now.  But I can tell you 

         3     that we plan to increase that number and it is something 

         4     that we will be combining along with our initiative to 

         5     assist the Police Department in identifying those 

         6     establishments that sell box cutters to children and 

         7     that display box cutters in violation of the law that 

         8     the Council enacted.

         9                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  And what is the 

        10     status of the database system that has merged the DCA 

        11     and DOH records on tobacco violations  --  

        12                  COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  That's my 

        13     question.    

        14                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Sorry, pick 

        15     another.  

        16                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  That process is 

        17     moving forward and we expect that it will be integrated 

        18     once the licensing center is up and running in November. 

        19                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  And if DCA and DOH 

        20     databases are not merged, how will the tobacco product 

        21     violations found by DCA be communicated to the 

        22     Department of Health and vice versa?  

        23                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  Currently there 

        24     is a relationship between DCA and DOH through licensing 

        25     initiatives and others, and right now they are being 
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         2     forwarded over to DOH manually.  We share the results of 

         3     our investigations with them.  We are also eager to have 

         4     the new technology in place so that all of this will be 

         5     computerized.

         6                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  And I just want to 

         7     go to, recently a report was released about responses 

         8     from different agencies on letters that are written to 

         9     the agencies, and the answers that go out or the letters 

        10     that don't get answered.  And according to the findings 

        11     there were six out of nine were answered and three were 

        12     not.  Can you explain this?

        13                  And I just want to say that the three 

        14     letters to which the agency did not respond was a 

        15     complaint format letter, one donation format letter and 

        16     one referral format letter.

        17                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I don't have an 

        18     answer for you.  However, I would like to see copies of 

        19     those letters so that I can track them down and be able 

        20     to provide you with an answer as to why they were not 

        21     responded to and take appropriate action to ensure that 

        22     we answer, that at least all letters were acknowledged 

        23     that come in from consumers or concerned 

        24     citizens.  

        25                  Answering letters and acknowledging the 
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         2     public is something that I take very seriously.  I try 

         3     to impress that upon my staff and if we're falling down 

         4     on the job in that area that is something that I would 

         5     like to correct.

         6                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Because I certainly 

         7     can relate to that because also we get threats like 

         8     we're not going to vote for you because maybe you didn't 

         9     answer me fast enough.

        10                  But I certainly understand that, but the 

        11     consumer has the right to get an answer, to recognize 

        12     that they're being heard, because that's one of the 

        13     biggest complaints that we get in the neighborhood, that 

        14     they're very frustrated with the bureaucratic system.

        15                  We've been joined by my colleague, Council 

        16     Member Anthony Weiner.

        17                  And Council Member Eristoff, even though I 

        18     took away your question.

        19                  COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  As the 

        20     chairperson of the Subcommittee on Technology, I always 

        21     ask these questions.  Let me begin with a subject that 

        22     you actually didn't raise in your testimony but I would 

        23     like to speak to.  

        24                  I read a few weeks ago of the report that 

        25     your agency issued on auto insurance and I would wonder 
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         2     if there's anything that you could update us on.  Is 

         3     there anything happening?

         4                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I think we have 

         5     raised some interesting questions.  At least I have 

         6     certainly gotten the state Insurance Department's 

         7     attention, and I think it is fair to say that the Mayor 

         8     and the Police Department have done a tremendous job in 

         9     reducing auto theft.  They've done so by more than 50 

        10     percent in the course of our study.  We saw that no 

        11     where else in the country had there been such a dramatic 

        12     drop in auto theft, from over 156,000 in '90 to just 

        13     slightly over 71,000 in '95. 

        14                  We have asked the question why is it then 

        15     that auto insurance rates have not come down given the 

        16     fact that insurance companies are making even greater 

        17     profits, and we have not gotten any satisfactory 

        18     answer.  The Mayor has appointed a task force and has 

        19     asked us to look into this further and we are meeting 

        20     with experts to see whether in fact we can translate 

        21     this into lower rates for all New Yorkers.  I'm glad to 

        22     see to some extent that the insurance companies are at 

        23     least acknowledging that there has been a tremendous 

        24     drop in auto theft and we hope that they will respond in 

        25     an appropriate and a fair way.
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         2                  COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  I just want to 

         3     commend you and your staff for doing this work.  I think 

         4     it's a wonderful sort of dividend on the Mayor's work on 

         5     crime citywide, and I'm hoping that we will be able to 

         6     save some dollars for consumers on auto insurance.    

         7                  My second question has to do with the 

         8     technical aspects of writing violations.  One of my 

         9     interests has been to get the city to develop a truly 

        10     universal summons.  Right now we have a so-called 

        11     universal summons for certain kind of violations.  We 

        12     have an ECB summons.  I believe that there are other 

        13     categories of summonses now also in use by various 

        14     agencies.

        15                  And I want to know what kind of summons 

        16     does DCA use, and as part of your computerization 

        17     project are you working with the Police Department to 

        18     kind of standardize those summonses?  For instance, my 

        19     local precinct, it's just outrageous, the officers on 

        20     the beat tell me they won't write a certain kind of 

        21     violation because they don't have the right kind of 

        22     summons on them, they don't want to carry extra forms 

        23     around with them.

        24                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  Let me tell you 

        25     on the technological front, which is of great interest 
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         2     to you, we have already been meeting with OMB and the 

         3     Mayor's Office of Operations to put in place a pilot 

         4     project where our inspectors will be able to go out with 

         5     hand-held computers.  

         6                  We think that this will improve efficiency 

         7     many, many times over.  It will cut down on paperwork, 

         8     it will cut down on errors, it will allow for the free 

         9     and easy flow of information between inspectors in the 

        10     field and our offices over at the Department of Consumer 

        11     Affairs.  So we're very excited about this program, 

        12     being able to take advantage of this technology, and we 

        13     hope to be able to move forward soon.

        14                  I share your concern about the issuance of 

        15     summonses and the fact that we have so many enforcement 

        16     personnel enforcing so many different rules and 

        17     regulations, many of which are identical, some are 

        18     duplicative, and it is a tremendous waste of time.  It 

        19     creates an unnecessary burden on business people.

        20                  There has been some talk about 

        21     consolidating some of these efforts and that is 

        22     something that we would support so that we don't have a 

        23     situation where a business person find himself or 

        24     herself being issued a summons one day, a response by 

        25     the department's inspector, the day after that a 
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         2     sanitation summons, the day after that the police 

         3     summons  --

         4                  COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  All of which are 

         5     returnable  --  right now, just for my own benefit, I 

         6     understand that DCA summonses are returnable to ECB, is 

         7     that right?

         8                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  They're not 

         9     docketable, they're returnable at ECB and at Consumer 

        10     Affairs.

        11                  COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  And at Consumer 

        12     Affairs?

        13                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  Some here.  

        14                  COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  Here we are.  Why 

        15     can't we just get it all one way or the other so it's 

        16     less confusing both for the business community and for 

        17     the enforcement agents out there?  I understand that 

        18     this has been a problem for many years but I always like 

        19     to bring it up because I think it deserves a little bit 

        20     of attention.

        21                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  As you know, 

        22     conceptually I do agree with you and I do believe that 

        23     there is some movement to streamline and rationalize a 

        24     process that you correctly describe as chaotic and at 

        25     times nonsensical.
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         2                  COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  My final question 

         3     has to do with the first warnings and the second 

         4     warnings.  Your spoke of warnings being given in the 

         5     weights and measures context but the MMR also talks 

         6     about second warnings.  Could you just briefly tell us 

         7     what kinds of violations you're issuing warnings for and 

         8     in what license categories, that sort of thing?

         9                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  We have 

        10     identified 24 categories that, depending upon the nature 

        11     of the violation  --  and I'll be happy to supply 

        12     counsel with a copy of the list which identifies the 

        13     categories and the kinds of violations that might be 

        14     appropriate for a warning, an early warning in the first 

        15     instance as opposed to a violation.

        16                  But rather than going into all of the 

        17     categories I would just like to give you an example of 

        18     one that might fall in that category.  For instance, a 

        19     sightseeing guide who is lecturing while the vehicle is 

        20     in motion would seem to us as the kind of violation that 

        21     might perhaps be appropriate for a warning as opposed to 

        22     a violation.  

        23                  Some of the stoop line stand violations 

        24     which are technical in nature, where the person is not a 

        25     recidivist, is the kind of violation that might be 
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         2     appropriate for an early warning violation.  

         3                  As I said, we've identified 24 categories 

         4     where we describe both  --  we identify the violation 

         5     and a description of the violation, as I said, might be 

         6     appropriate for an early warning.  

         7                  COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  And in some 

         8     instances you are in fact issuing a second warning?

         9                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I believe that 

        10     that is something that the agency had initially thought 

        11     about but upon further reflection it is probably 

        12     something that we will not go forward with.  It will be 

        13     one free bite of the apple, as it were, for minor 

        14     technical infractions.  But I don't believe we'll go 

        15     forward with that second bite.

        16                  COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  When you say 

        17     stoop line, I assume you're talking about fruit stands.  

        18     At least in my district, Commissioner, every single 

        19     violator is a recidivist.  I mean, there's no such thing 

        20     as an innocent violator.  It's the same stores, same 

        21     markets every single time who violate.  At least in 

        22     Manhattan we may be running out of the first warnings.

        23                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I want to share 

        24     a number with you that I think really underscores the 

        25     department's commitment to this.
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         2                  In '95 we issued a total of 1,645 stoop 

         3     line violations.  In fiscal year '96, that number 

         4     climbed to 6,638.  I think that that is rather 

         5     compelling evidence that notwithstanding the fact that 

         6     there's still many grocers and others who are violating 

         7     rules and regulations, the department I think is 

         8     responding in a very, very serious and dramatic way, and 

         9     I believe those numbers are pretty telling.  

        10                  COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  I think that's 

        11     excellent news.  I have noticed in my own office that 

        12     the complaints that we pass along to your office are 

        13     dealt with firstly and quickly.  And I want to thank you 

        14     for that.  But it is discouraging to have to constantly 

        15     go after these people.

        16                  Exit question, as they say on Sunday 

        17     morning.  Do you have information pamphlets available to 

        18     give to these grocers in foreign languages so they 

        19     understand what the rules are?  Because at some point 

        20     education has to step in here on this.  And if you do, 

        21     can I have some?

        22                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  Let me say 

        23     this, we do not have them in this area.  As you know, we 

        24     have brochures in languages that speak to a number of 

        25     other issues, but I think this is actually a very good 

               COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS                      30

         1

         2     suggestion and one that I think will work.  We know that 

         3     we need to hit certainly the Latino community, the 

         4     Korean community.

         5                  But it's important that if you're going to 

         6     cover one group you really need to cover all groups, and 

         7     this is a very good idea and one that I think we will 

         8     try to work toward.

         9                  COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  Thank you very 

        10     much, Commissioner.

        11                  Thank you, Madam Chair.

        12                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Thank you.

        13                  I'm going to ask another question.  

        14     According to a May 31st comptroller's report, DCA 

        15     complaint mediators reduced complaint processing time, 

        16     in many cases, by eliminating the required step of 

        17     verifying complaint resolution with the consumer.  

        18                  Why was the verification step omitted?

        19                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  That was a 

        20     defect in the process that the comptroller's audit 

        21     discovered and it has now been corrected.  We now send 

        22     out a closing letter to all complainants and that's the 

        23     way in which we do verifying.  So that's something that 

        24     has been addressed by the agency.

        25                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Fine.  
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         2                  Registering under 7,000 complaints might 

         3     indicate increased lawlessness on the part of 

         4     businesses.  It can also indicate difficulties in 

         5     getting through to personnel, personnel recommending 

         6     against filing complaints, or a sense of futility about 

         7     complaining.

         8                  What data do you have to suggest that an 

         9     increased amount of information reduces the number of 

        10     valid complaints registered?

        11                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I don't have 

        12     empirical data.  I would have what I would call 

        13     anecdotal experience, and if you get the word out as to 

        14     what one's duties and responsibilities are, hopefully 

        15     people will comply so they don't find themselves 

        16     subjected to enforcement action.

        17                  With regard to discouraging people from 

        18     filing complaints, nothing can be further from the 

        19     truth.  Since I've been commissioner, and I would like 

        20     to give you a couple of examples, we recently got a 

        21     number of complaints from people who were being ripped 

        22     off by prepaid phone companies.  Those complaints came 

        23     to the department.  

        24                  Notwithstanding the fact that this is 

        25     probably something that should be regulated by the FCC 
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         2     or the Public Service Commission, we sat down with our 

         3     lawyers and tried to come up with what I believe was a 

         4     rather creative enforcement initiative, number one, to 

         5     go after these prepaid phone companies to file a lawsuit 

         6     against them to put a number of them out of business. 

         7                  One specifically, the Travel Phone Card, 

         8     was ripping off many minority residents.  As a result of 

         9     the legal action that we took we got Travel Phone card 

        10     to deposit $20,000 in a fund so we could make 

        11     restitution to these individuals who were ripped off by 

        12     prepaid phone cards. 

        13                  We recently learned that a number of 

        14     unscrupulous individuals were placing ads in Chinese 

        15     language newspapers claiming to be doctors.  We do not 

        16     license the medical profession but nevertheless we found 

        17     out that this conduct was so gross, so reprehensible, 

        18     that we directed our lawyers to come up with an 

        19     enforcement strategy to work with the Chinese community, 

        20     to work with the Chinese language newspapers and to 

        21     issue violations against these people who placed these 

        22     ads.  

        23                  So we don't discourage people from 

        24     complaining, whether we have jurisdiction or not.  We 

        25     try and encourage them and see how we can go about 
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         2     assisting them.

         3                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Can you explain why 

         4     there are more violations that are going on now?

         5                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I can give you 

         6     one example.  Last year we issued 1,600 violation for 

         7     stoop line offenses.  We've got numerous complaints from 

         8     community boards, from Council Members who are all very 

         9     displeased that certain grocers are violating the stoop 

        10     line violation regulations.

        11                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  And I happen to be 

        12     one of them.

        13                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  And in response 

        14     to those complaints we tried to come up with an 

        15     enforcement initiative that would be responsive, and 

        16     that's why we went from 1,600 violations for stoop lines 

        17     to 6,600 violations in 1996.

        18                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  I'm going to defer 

        19     to Peter Bruno from the Finance Division.

        20                  MR. P. BRUNO:  I'm just going to ask this 

        21     question.  If the license law violations are up from 

        22     last year relative to fiscal year '95, yet the 

        23     operations of the agency are such that the consumer 

        24     complaints are down, because as you stated the word is 

        25     out to the businesses, I just don't understand how those 
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         2     pieces fit together.

         3                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I think you 

         4     just heard Council Member Eristoff say that in his 

         5     borough alone or in his councilmanic district there 

         6     isn't a grocer that's not in violation of stoop line 

         7     violation.  We're up 5,000 violations in the stoop line 

         8     category.

         9                  MR. P. BRUNO:  So that particular area  -- 

        10                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I think it's a 

        11     rather dramatic increase. 

        12                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Council Member 

        13     Weiner. 

        14                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Thank you, Madam 

        15     Chair.  

        16                  Welcome, Commissioner.

        17                  Just a couple of things that Council Member 

        18     Eristoff said.  I find that your agency is one of the 

        19     most responsive to the on-ground complaints that when 

        20     you're called the folks are usually there and they're 

        21     knowledgeable and they get the job done.

        22                  Notwithstanding some of the cuts in your 

        23     agency, in the beginning of this Administration, when 

        24     the Mayor floated the idea of eliminating the Department 

        25     of Consumer Affairs, you might recall that I organized a 
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         2     letter here in the Council that I think over 41 members 

         3     signed a letter saying keep DCA around because it's one 

         4     of the agencies that does a good job and pays for 

         5     itself.  

         6                  But commissioners of DCA have been 

         7     complaining about the absence of docketing authority as 

         8     long as I can remember.  Almost as one of my first 

         9     pieces of legislation I introduced a state legislative 

        10     request asking for docketing authority, and 

        11     commissioners before you, and I heard the other day you 

        12     also mentioned it, Mr. Matteo mentioned it in context of 

        13     another hearing, yet you do nothing about it.

        14                  I talk to my colleagues and notwithstanding 

        15     the fact that it was part of the uniform collection 

        16     package that went down I guess in the State Legislature, 

        17     there's no real effort, it seems like something that, 

        18     it's the Republicans in the State Senate have expressed 

        19     objections to it in the past, but there's no real push 

        20     by the Administration in Albany to get it done.  

        21                  You have testified and past commissioners 

        22     also that it would result in substantial savings and 

        23     also give you substantially more leverage in dealing 

        24     with violators.  The bill out there, it's had the 

        25     support of the Administration, yet not much else.  
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         2                  When was the last telephone call you all 

         3     made to a state legislator to get this thing done?

         4                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I have to be 

         5     very frank with you, Council Member.  I take the 

         6     position that previous commissioners have taken which is 

         7     that we are very supportive of getting the docketing 

         8     power.  In all candor, I can tell you that I have not 

         9     picked up the phone to speak to anyone or to really sort 

        10     of advance that cause.  And perhaps after today's 

        11     hearing I'll do so.

        12                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  I would be glad to 

        13     send you over a copy of the bill.  It just says give DCA 

        14     something that many other agencies have, and it puts you 

        15     all in a position  --  as you know, you're waiting at 

        16     the end of the line with a civil court proceeding, that 

        17     puts you in a position when you're trying to persuade a 

        18     bad player to act better, it puts you in a tougher spot.

        19                  You might have seen that Council Member 

        20     Koslowitz and I compiled some information dealing with 

        21     the success of the electronics store licensing 

        22     legislation that this Council passed several years and 

        23     it seems that overall the law has been successful.  With 

        24     that licensing there are rules and you're able to 

        25     enforce them.
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         2                  But it strikes me that when you do an 

         3     excellent job and someone calls in and complains but 

         4     there's very little inspections that go on, you just go 

         5     out from time to time doing spot inspections in the 

         6     electronics store industry.  And if you recall that 

         7     legislation was passed for several reasons, but one of 

         8     which was to protect tourists and consumers in the outer 

         9     boroughs, that's why it was expanded beyond midtown.

        10                  Is there anyone, as a matter of course, is 

        11     there anyone in your office who goes through the ads in 

        12     the papers, that those ads are in black and white, quite 

        13     literally  --  why are those types of inspections down 

        14     so much and, first of all, is there anybody who does 

        15     those types of inspections?

        16                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  Council Member, 

        17     we in fact have staff who are dedicated specifically to 

        18     scam ads.  I am aware of the number of investigations 

        19     that are ongoing right now which were the result of 

        20     false and deceptive ads that were placed in newspapers.

        21                  With regard to why they may be down, my 

        22     response is that oftentimes enforcement priorities 

        23     shift, depending upon sort of what new scam happens to 

        24     hit the market.  I recently made reference to one where 

        25     we had to use a lot of staff.  It was very intensive and 
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         2     we responded to what I thought was a life threatening 

         3     situation.

         4                  Not too long ago a number of ads were 

         5     placed in Chinese language newspapers and we thought we 

         6     needed to respond to this because they were hiring 

         7     people to come into offices, and to be treated by people 

         8     who not only did not have the qualifications but were 

         9     really engaging in butchery.  When something like that 

        10     happens, notwithstanding what other priorities might be, 

        11     we need to shift resources, be they lawyers, inspectors, 

        12     to move quickly.  

        13                  As I said, we do have dedicated staff who 

        14     look at that and this is something that I will take a 

        15     further look at because it is important that electronics 

        16     stores which still, as you well know, continue to rip 

        17     off the public, that they know that DCA is vigilant and 

        18     that we're going to make sure that they comply with the 

        19     law.

        20                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Before I move off 

        21     that point, I should say that DCA does seem to have in 

        22     place a very good system when complaints come in and are 

        23     mediated that don't show up anywhere numerically, but we 

        24     found that many consumers say that when they called in a 

        25     resolution was mediated, it didn't result in violation, 
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         2     and so for that you deserve credit.

         3                  Let me just ask a final question.  You get 

         4     a great deal of business on stoop line infractions and I 

         5     think you'll agree that the laws pertaining to what is 

         6     allowed and not allowed on a sidewalk are convoluted, 

         7     Byzantine, cross many different agencies.  Perhaps this 

         8     is a time to support a bill that I have introduced 

         9     recently to clarify this thing altogether and to say 

        10     make it simpler for the Police Department, make it 

        11     simpler for Sanitation, make it simpler for DCA.

        12                  And we are going to consolidate all of 

        13     these different laws and rules and say you can't put 

        14     anything at all on the sidewalks with the exception of 

        15     the fruits and vegetables.  We have a stoop line 

        16     violation law that seems to work fairly well.  Maybe 

        17     Christmas trees and palms at this time of year for the 

        18     Jewish community, newspapers and maybe ices or something 

        19     like that in front of pizzerias and that's it, you don't 

        20     put anything else.  You don't have shoes, you don't have 

        21     refrigerators, you don't have everything under the sun 

        22     which is permitted.  You have to measure the streets in 

        23     Chinatown and you have to do an analysis of foot travel 

        24     in Queens.  

        25                  It seems to me that it's reached a point 
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         2     that if we really have quality of life concerns, one of 

         3     the things that we hear a lot, and I know Council Member 

         4     Freed, who represents some very narrow streets in her 

         5     district, it has become in many neighborhoods a real 

         6     problem, and when you ask the local beat cop he has to 

         7     refer to a manual that's half an inch thick.  

         8                  Even your inspectors have to consult a 

         9     manual, how wide is the street, what's the portion 

        10     that's left open  --  we are in a microcosm that worked 

        11     when we dealt with mobile food vendors but maybe it's 

        12     time to clarify some of these laws, and perhaps if you 

        13     would give a little bit of thought and set up some kind 

        14     of a working room to do that, perhaps because it is one 

        15     of the leading reasons that I call DCA and, as I said at 

        16     the outset, you're very responsive and they come out 

        17     with their measures and their books, but if I were to 

        18     walk Avenue U, I would have to figure out, is this guy 

        19     selling shoes, is he on a restricted street, is he 

        20     selling the same product he sells inside, does he have a 

        21     stoop line sale permit.  It has become too complex.  

        22                  And I think it's something that would help 

        23     with enforcement, when someone calls you up and says am 

        24     I allowed to put merchandise out on the sidewalk.  

        25     Let's face it, you can't tell him, you don't know what 
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         2     type of stand.  

         3                  So I would be interested in hearing your 

         4     response to that notion of getting some kind of 

         5     clarification to these laws.

         6                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  In a word, I 

         7     agree.  As Council Member Eristoff said earlier, the 

         8     system is Byzantine and chaotic, and it is in dire need 

         9     of clarification.  I would certainly be interested in 

        10     looking at any suggestions or ideas that you might have, 

        11     whether it's in the nature of a proposed bill or a 

        12     working document, I would like to take a look at that, 

        13     have my staff take a look at it, and perhaps share our 

        14     thoughts and comments.  

        15                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  As he had one foot 

        16     out the door, Commissioner Cerullo also expressed 

        17     interest.

        18                  Fair enough.  Thank you.

        19                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  I agree absolutely 

        20     with what you're saying because I experience the same 

        21     thing, and I think one of the arguments or ironies of 

        22     this whole thing is the kiddie rides.  Even though they 

        23     have been delicensed a very short time, people were 

        24     being issued licenses for having kiddie rides on streets 

        25     that were not authorized to have anything on them.  
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         2                  So it's a two-fold thing, and of course 

         3     kiddie rides are something that I don't think upsets 

         4     anybody.  So I think your legislation as a piece of 

         5     legislation is a good one.

         6                  I have one more question.

         7                  And I just want to mention that we've been 

         8     joined by Council Member Freed and Council Member 

         9     Lasher.

        10                  And my last question is, are the statistics 

        11     reported in the 1996 MMR generated by CAMIS or are they 

        12     collected manually?  Last year we asked for access to 

        13     CAMIS.  When can we gain access?  

        14                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  With regard to 

        15     the first question, the answer is both.  Some of the 

        16     data we collect for statistical purposes for the MMR or 

        17     any other request that's made of the agency may come 

        18     from CAMIS and some is collected manualLy.

        19                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Is the intention to 

        20     go full?

        21                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  The intention 

        22     is always to take advantage of all the technology that's 

        23     available.  So we hope to be in the position where 

        24     everything is computerized and we can better manage our 

        25     information and pull it out and annualize it.  So that 
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         2     is our hope.

         3                  I'm sorry, the second question was  -- 

         4                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Access, can we gain 

         5     access?

         6                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I'll look into 

         7     it.  This is the first time I'm hearing this.  We'll 

         8     take a look at it and get back to you.

         9                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  I have one more 

        10     question that refers to the MMR.  The MMR states that 

        11     illegal chasing and soliciting is down by 94 percent 

        12     since the SARD and elimination of the call-your-own-tow 

        13     legislation.  Since the remainder of our hearing will be 

        14     devoted to this topic, could you explain how this number 

        15     was arrived at?

        16                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  As I believe I 

        17     indicated earlier, the information that we provided to 

        18     the Council and which was in or report with regards to 

        19     accidents and perhaps chasing was incomplete and not 

        20     accurate.  It was information that was provided to us at 

        21     this time and I believe that the Police Department, who 

        22     will have a representative here, will be commenting on 

        23     some of that information.

        24                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Before I end this, 

        25     does someone, any of my colleagues want to ask a 
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         2     question on the MMR?

         3                  Council Member Freed.

         4                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Thank you, Madam 

         5     Chair.

         6                  I had a question basically sort of on the 

         7     MMR, but I was looking at  --  because I did come in a 

         8     little bit late  --  the idea of one-stop shopping, one 

         9     of the problems I have with these sidewalk cafes 

        10     downtown, and I'm wondering how that's going to be 

        11     working this time.

        12                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I'm sorry, the 

        13     one-stop shopping applies to the procedures for 

        14     obtaining a license  -- 

        15                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  One of the problems 

        16     I've had, I guess because there was a changeover in 

        17     sidewalk cafes so that the City Council actually has to 

        18     approve or have the right to call up the sidewalk cafe 

        19     before it's approved and also is actually issued from 

        20     DCA that we've had a couple of incidences that we have, 

        21     I've called up the sidewalk cafe, DCA not realizing that 

        22     it was called up, and having gotten something from DOT, 

        23     had issued the license and then we basically had to go 

        24     and take it back or make some changes and  -- 

        25                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I'm personally 
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         2     not familiar with that problem.  What I would like to 

         3     do, if you could provide me with the information I would 

         4     like to take a look at it and explain to you what 

         5     happened, why it happened, whether it was a glitch in 

         6     the system or whether it was just a mistake, a human 

         7     kind of error, so we can try to address that.  

         8                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  It's happened a 

         9     couple of times and for a number of reasons that have to 

        10     do with the system a little bit and just not knowing 

        11     what the changes were  -- 

        12                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I could give 

        13     you a call, and I would be more than happy to look into 

        14     it for you.

        15                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Thank you.

        16                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Thank you very 

        17     much.

        18                  I know you have to be on your way.

        19                  COMMISSIONER J. MALDONADO:  I just want to 

        20     apologize to the committee.  As many of you know, as the 

        21     commissioner for the Department of Consumer Affairs, I'm 

        22     also a member of the Trade Waste Commission and we're 

        23     about to hold public hearings of our own and that's why 

        24     I can't stay for the remainder of the hearing, so I 

        25     apologize.
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         2                  But thank you very much.

         3                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Thank you.

         4                  Would you please state your name for the 

         5     record and give us your testimony.

         6                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Yes.  Good 

         7     morning, Madam Chairperson and committee members.  My 

         8     name is Thomas Matteo and I am the deputy commissioner 

         9     for operations and administration of the Department of 

        10     Consumer Affairs, and I'm pleased to testify about 

        11     Intro 852.  

        12                  On September 19th I testified before this 

        13     committee about DCA's report on the status of the 

        14     Special Accident Response District, or SARD, 

        15     demonstration project.  That report included data on 

        16     accidents that was inaccurate for 1995.

        17                  The report indicated that there were 118 

        18     accidents involving personal injuries, zero accidents 

        19     involving fatalities, and a total of 113 accidents 

        20     involving tow trucks.

        21                  Subsequent information, obtained from the 

        22     New York State Department of Motor Vehicles, indicates 

        23     that there were 218 accidents involving personal 

        24     injuries, one fatal accident, and a total of 257 

        25     accidents involving tow trucks.
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         2                  These data are also problematic in that 

         3     they do not differentiate among accidents in a way that 

         4     would be germane for a valid evaluation of the 

         5     call-your-own tow prohibition.

         6                  For example, the one fatality listed by the 

         7     DMV involved a tow truck from out of state that was 

         8     passing through the city and not part of SARD, DARP or 

         9     any other city tow program.

        10                  In fact, the abstracts of the accidents 

        11     reported by the DMV often lack sufficient detail to 

        12     determine who was at fault, if the tow truck was going 

        13     to the scene of an accident, coming from the scene of an 

        14     accident, or already at an accident scene, much less if 

        15     it was a participant in SARD, DARP or any other city tow 

        16     program.

        17                  Given the inherent limitations of the data 

        18     available to use about accidents, they cannot be used to 

        19     evaluate the impact that the prohibition on calling your 

        20     own tow has on safety.  We are therefore left with 

        21     having to base our recommendation about the calling your 

        22     own tow prohibition on anecdotal information.

        23                  The best source for this type of 

        24     information is firsthand observation of the men and 

        25     women who are involved with accidents on a day to day 
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         2     basis, the Police Department.  Nevertheless, the 

         3     department believes that the prohibition against calling 

         4     our own tow should be made permanent and the SARD 

         5     program should be continued for another 18 months to 

         6     give us an opportunity to study the feasibility of 

         7     implementing the SARD program citywide.

         8                  At this time I would like to turn over the 

         9     microphone to Captain Volpe of the Police Department.  

        10     At the conclusion of her testimony I would be happy to 

        11     answer any questions you might have.  

        12                  Thank you.

        13                  CAPT. C. VOLPE:  Good morning, Madam Chair 

        14     and Council Members.  I'm Captain Catherine Volpe, the 

        15     commanding officer of the resource management section, 

        16     and I'm assigned to the office of chief of patrol.  

        17                  I'm here today to represent the Police 

        18     Department on the Special Accident Response District, 

        19     SARD, pilot program and the prohibitions on calling your 

        20     own tow to accident scenes.  

        21                  As you are well aware, SARD has been 

        22     operating as pilot program in the 6, 43, 68 and 105 

        23     Precincts since March 1st of '95, and then was extended 

        24     to the Borough of Staten Island to include the 120 and 

        25     the 123 Precincts on April 1st of '96.
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         2                  The prohibition on calling your own tow and 

         3     SARD have proven to be beneficial programs for the 

         4     Police Department in numerous ways.  After conferring 

         5     with officers in the field and our communications 

         6     divisions, their consensus is that, number one, SARD 

         7     companies are territorial in nature and by permitting 

         8     one company or possibly a couple of companies to operate 

         9     in a precinct this has prevented chasing of tow trucks 

        10     to the scene of accidents.

        11                  Number two, SARD has eliminated the police 

        12     officer's discretion at the scene of an accident.  

        13     Officers know which companies are authorized in their 

        14     precinct or in their sector in the case of Staten 

        15     Island.  

        16                  Number three, SARD has eliminated 

        17     confrontations between the tow truck operators, vehicle 

        18     operators and the officers at the scene.  Prior to the 

        19     prohibition against calling your own tow numerous tow 

        20     companies would converge on the scene of an accident and 

        21     attempt to get the accident victim to agree to the tow.  

        22     Often the victim was confused and may have selected a 

        23     company which may not have been their best choice at 

        24     that point in time.  

        25                  In addition, the officer no longer decides 
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         2     which tower will actually get the job.  The decision is 

         3     already made.  The SARD tow company gets the job.  

         4                  Four, public awareness.  The SARD program 

         5     is easily explainable to the victim by the officers, 

         6     especially when they're told that the company is 

         7     licensed by the Department of Consumer Affairs.

         8                  Number five, SARD has reduced the number of 

         9     unlicensed tow truck drivers in the city.  Tow companies 

        10     licensed by the Department of Consumer Affairs are only 

        11     permitted to allow licensed tow truck drivers to operate 

        12     their vehicles.  If a SARD company allows an unlicensed 

        13     driver or a driver with a suspended license to operate 

        14     their tow truck and if the driver is served with a 

        15     violation by the police officer, the fines by the 

        16     Department of Consumer Affairs would probably have a 

        17     large financial repercussion to the company.  

        18                  Number six, the enforcement effort.  Police 

        19     officers may issue an L.D. 6.  An L.D. 6 is a report of 

        20     violation to a tow truck operator for violation of the 

        21     law.  If found guilty, the Department of Consumer 

        22     Affairs may impose a substantial fine on the company and 

        23     or the driver.  

        24                  Also, the officers may confiscate this 

        25     unlicensed tow truck.  Recently in the Bronx an L.D. 6 
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         2     was issued to an unlicensed tow truck operator for 

         3     responding to an accident without being called to the 

         4     scene.  The Department of Consumer Affairs fined the 

         5     company $4,500.  This large fine or the threat of such a 

         6     large fine would cut down on this chasing problem that 

         7     we have.

         8                  Also, since SARD began in the 43 Precinct 

         9     not one L.D. 6 reported violation has been issued to a 

        10     tow truck company for responding to the scene of an 

        11     accident without being called.  The word is out in the 

        12     43 Precinct that only SARD tow truck vehicles are 

        13     authorized to respond to accidents in that command.

        14                  Number seven, SARD saves time for the 

        15     Police Department, for the police officers on the street 

        16     and also for our communications personnel.  It 

        17     eliminates the need for the officer when responding to 

        18     the scene to settle any disputes.  As I had previously 

        19     mentioned, SARD also reduces the time a police radio 

        20     motor patrol vehicle has to wait for a tow truck company 

        21     to respond to the scene.  

        22                  Under DARP, as it exists now, the officer 

        23     has to wait for tow truck companies to respond.  In most 

        24     times now in the SARD program, the company is there on 

        25     the scene already taking care of removing the vehicles 
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         2     prior to the officers responding to the scene, and this 

         3     is allowed because under SARD they are allowed to 

         4     monitor the police radio so most of the times our 

         5     communications division does not have to get on the 

         6     phone to the company for the tow truck to be 

         7     dispatched.  It's already dispatched.

         8                  This has also decreased the number of phone 

         9     calls that our communications division has to make.  It 

        10     has reduced, as I said previously, the time an officer 

        11     does wait on the scene for the tow because the tow is 

        12     already at the scene.  To date there has only been one 

        13     incidence in which the communications division of the 

        14     Police Department had to call a DARP tow to respond to a 

        15     SARD precinct, and that's because there was no answer at 

        16     the SARD location itself.  So most of the time they're 

        17     monitoring the radio themselves and our communications 

        18     division does not have to get on the phone and start the 

        19     chain of events that would normally have to occur. 

        20                  However, most important of all is the 

        21     concern for public safety.  The officer's main focus 

        22     with SARD would now be directed on administering medical 

        23     attention and aiding that victim.  While the tow truck 

        24     company, SARD company on the scene, will take care of 

        25     the accident scene, they'll be removing the vehicles.  
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         2     SARD and the prohibition of calling your own tow has 

         3     eliminated the need for chasing to the scene which in 

         4     turn should ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety.

         5                  In conclusion, the Police Department 

         6     strongly supports the Department of Consumer Affairs' 

         7     recommendation to extend the pilot program for an 

         8     additional 18 months.  The reason for our support of 

         9     this extension is due to the fact that our 

        10     communications division will be converting to the 

        11     digital dispatch system and CAD, which is a Computer 

        12     Automated Dispatch system.  

        13                  These two systems are going to be silent 

        14     systems that are going to be in place where now with 

        15     SARD the tow truck companies are monitoring the police 

        16     radio.  Under these two new systems that are going to be 

        17     put in place within the next year, they will not be able 

        18     to monitor that radio because it's all going to be done 

        19     by silent dispatch.  Therefore an evaluation will be 

        20     needed to be conducted on the impact that SARD will have 

        21     as it exists today when these systems come into place.

        22                  Thank you.

        23                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Thank you.

        24                  I just want to mention we've been joined by 

        25     Council Members Watkins and Sabini.
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         2                  I would like to ask the police questions 

         3     and then I have questions also for the Administration.

         4                  Please explain to us what generally occurs 

         5     from the moment a serious accident takes place until the 

         6     site is cleared.

         7                  CAPT. C. VOLPE:  When the officers first 

         8     respond to the scene of an accident, their first concern 

         9     is really aid to the victims of that accident, to see if 

        10     they need medical attention.  If they need medical 

        11     attention, then they'll be calling for EMS to respond 

        12     for aid for that victim.  

        13                  They'll be taking care of that victim and 

        14     then after the victim is attended to then their concern 

        15     is clearing the vehicle away from the scene of an 

        16     accident and letting the rest of the traffic continue to 

        17     flow.

        18                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  How do you get the 

        19     calls when the accidents occurs?  What happens?  How do 

        20     you know?

        21                  CAPT. C. VOLPE:  A regular patrol car, 

        22     you're talking about?  

        23                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Correct.

        24                  CAPT. C. VOLPE:  What happens is you have 

        25     cars that are out on patrol and a call would come in to 
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         2     911.  911 then, depending upon the area, routes the call 

         3     to the proper dispatcher in the communications division, 

         4     who then in turn gets on the radio and notifies that 

         5     patrol car, that sector in the area that's concerned to 

         6     respond to the accident.  

         7                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  And what percentage 

         8     of accidents subject to SARD and DARP are the police at 

         9     the scene when the tow truck arrives? 

        10                  And also in that question, how long do the 

        11     police remain on the scene?

        12                  CAPT. C. VOLPE:  Most of the times with 

        13     SARD the tow truck companies get there before the police 

        14     actually respond and an average amount of time, it takes 

        15     almost 12.5 minutes after receiving the vehicle accident 

        16     message from the police radio for the police cars to 

        17     actually respond to the scene.  Under SARD, like I said, 

        18     in most instances the tow trucks are there before the 

        19     police are actually on the scene.

        20                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  And are the police 

        21     writing L.D. 6's when an unauthorized tow truck appears 

        22     at the scene?  

        23                  CAPT. C. VOLPE:  Yes, and in one case 

        24     earlier an L.D. 6 was issued for a car that a tow truck 

        25     that had responded to the scene that was not called to 
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         2     the scene itself.  

         3                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  And they're being 

         4     turned over to DCA?

         5                  CAPT. C. VOLPE:  Yes.  What happens is when 

         6     the police fill out the L.D. 6, the report of 

         7     violations, it's forwarded directly to the Department of 

         8     Consumer Affairs which in turn holds hearings at which 

         9     the officer has to be present.

        10                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Does it happen 

        11     often that an unauthorized tow truck appears at a scene?

        12                  CAPT. C. VOLPE:  It did prior to the 

        13     prohibition against calling your own tow, and also with 

        14     SARD we have eliminated the chasing to the scene because 

        15     the tow truck companies know that the only tows that are 

        16     authorized within those particular SARD areas are SARD 

        17     tow trucks authorized by the Department of Consumer 

        18     Affairs.  So it's eliminating the chasing.

        19                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Thank you very 

        20     much.

        21                  And now I have some questions for the 

        22     Administration and then I'll turn over questioning to my 

        23     colleagues.

        24                  The MMR states that illegal chasing and 

        25     soliciting has declined by 94 percent since the SARD 
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         2     program and elimination of the call-your-own-tow option.  

         3     How do you arrive at that number?

         4                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Some of 

         5     that information was based on the data that we had 

         6     earlier which was also reflected in the report.  So the 

         7     call-your-own-tow option, the elimination of the option 

         8     was based on incomplete information at the time we wrote 

         9     the report. 

        10                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  And do you have any 

        11     data on the number of speeding violations against tow 

        12     trucks in the pilot as compared to before?

        13                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  No, I don't 

        14     have that information.

        15                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Is there anywhere 

        16     we can get the information?

        17                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  A tow truck 

        18     can get a speeding ticket and the officer issuing that 

        19     ticket would not know necessarily where they were going 

        20     at the time, if they were late for a date or to the 

        21     scene of an accident, so it would be difficult to 

        22     ascertain that unless they were at the scene of an 

        23     accident, they chased to that scene.

        24                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  What is your 

        25     conviction rate on those soliciting violations?  What 
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         2     was your conviction rate prior to the program, the 

         3     pilot?

         4                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  When an 

         5     officer gives an L.D. 6 for a violation, our conviction 

         6     rate is very high.  I don't have the number on that.  I 

         7     can tell get you, in fact most of our summonses that 

         8     even go to ECB, for instance, have a very high 

         9     conviction rate.  

        10                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Also there are 

        11     people reporting that there are private cars chasing 

        12     accidents, one in particular in the 43 Precinct, in 

        13     Throgs Neck.  Can you bring us up to  -- 

        14                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  I don't 

        15     know about that specific incident.  However, I think 

        16     what has been spoken in the past is the belief by 

        17     someone in some of the DARP program districts that 

        18     vehicles, cars, sedans, were going to the scene to see 

        19     whether or not it was tow-worthy of the company.  What I 

        20     mean by that is there is not the money made on the tow.  

        21     There's very little compared to what is made by a repair 

        22     shop.

        23                  So in a DARP program, the next company up 

        24     in a DARP program does not have an accident that could 

        25     bring them the kind of money that they want, they won't 
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         2     show up, and that is one of the thing we were concerned 

         3     about, where in the SARD district the company knows 

         4     they're going to get every tow there so one will tend to 

         5     balance off the other, so there's no reluctance to come 

         6     and not tow a car that might not be valuable to them in 

         7     terms of repairs.  So I think the comment about cars 

         8     rushing to the scene of an accident, it might be a scout 

         9     car.

        10                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Do any of my 

        11     colleagues have any questions?

        12                  Council Member Weiner.

        13                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Thank you, Madam 

        14     Chair.

        15                  I got to tell you, I'm puzzled.  I opposed 

        16     the creation of this.  Whether or not it's working, you 

        17     now have presented testimony that it's working 

        18     fabulously.  So what's with the 18 months thing?  You 

        19     say you have to work out problems with communications.  

        20     You know, I have to tell you, I'm not a brilliant man, 

        21     but I don't think that should be something that takes a 

        22     year and a half to work out.

        23                  The one part of it that takes away 

        24     consumers' rights, the ability to call their own truck, 

        25     that's something that you're extending permanently.  Why 
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         2     not tell the committee right now five or six things you 

         3     would like to change in the existing law, give us a 

         4     schedule for how you want to take it citywide, and we'll 

         5     get this thing done.  

         6                  I understand that it's your business but I 

         7     think we're spending an enormous amount of time in this 

         8     committee trying to perfect something that's been 

         9     perfected before.  Why don't we get off the pot here and 

        10     make these changes that need to be changed and move on?

        11                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  I've been 

        12     accused of not having grass grow under my feet.  The 

        13     issue with the SARD is that each district precinct is a 

        14     little bit different in the city.  You may have some 

        15     precincts where there may be a multiple number of tow 

        16     companies available and other precincts where there are 

        17     none.  SARD as it's designed may not be able to  --  

        18                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  You had 19 months 

        19     to sort that out.

        20                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  What we did 

        21     was we took a look at what was operating and brought up 

        22     to speed the six precincts.  Now initially the 

        23     subsequent legislation authorized seven precincts to 

        24     come under the SARD program.  What we did during the 

        25     last 18 months is we brought six up to speed and we had 
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         2     six operate.  What we want to do in the next 18 months 

         3     is sit down with the Police Department and the tow 

         4     industry and go precinct to precinct and find out what 

         5     are the restrictions and can they be overcome  --  

         6                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  And your testimony 

         7     is here, and I don't want to have read you from 

         8     testimony from the original hearings, your testimony is 

         9     that is an 18 month process.  That is a three day, two 

        10     hour meeting a day process, period.

        11                  I mean, this is not  --  you've got six 

        12     precincts going, you've got a sense for how things work, 

        13     what doesn't work.  We just heard testimony about how 

        14     successful this program is and now you're asking this 

        15     committee to work on this and just give you an extension 

        16     for 18 months while you ponder it.  

        17                  This is not rocket science.  Give me six or 

        18     seven areas that you would say are in contention.  One 

        19     was mentioned, problems with communications with the 

        20     silent thing.  The DARP program, for years they 

        21     telephoned the trucks, they can continue to do that.  Do 

        22     it over cellular phone, do it over land line.

        23                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  You have a 

        24     precinct that has 20 or 30 tow companies.  How do you go 

        25     about making sure that everybody has an opportunity to 
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         2     participate in the program so the program is operating 

         3     sufficiently to protect the consumers  --  

         4                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Set a standard, set 

         5     a method for rotation, move on, next.

         6                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Each 

         7     precinct is a little different in its nature.

         8                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Are you telling me 

         9     the industry and you all can't work these things out in 

        10     less than a year and a half, is that your testimony?

        11                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  What I'm 

        12     saying at this point, Councilman, is that we want to 

        13     make sure that the program when it's instituted citywide 

        14     and it actually goes into effect citywide works, and I 

        15     must say that I do not have enough information precinct 

        16     by precinct throughout the city to make that decision 

        17     now, A; and, B, if we had the logistics of actually 

        18     implementing it, it could not be done in two days or two 

        19     weeks.  If you are, for instance, going to have a system 

        20     in the district where you go and set up, A, prequalified 

        21     to find out which tow companies can operate  --  

        22                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Like you did in the 

        23     6th Precinct, you've already done that.

        24                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  That would 

        25     have to be done in each precinct, then you have to have 
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         2     a lottery  --  but you don't do that in 50 some odd 

         3     precincts throughout the city  --     

         4                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  I'm not saying do 

         5     it overnight.  I'm saying give us a bill to vote on 

         6     within the next week that tells you how you're going to 

         7     implement this program.  If you say it's going to take 

         8     us six months to do Queens and by the middle of '97 we 

         9     are going to have three precincts in the Bronx, and 

        10     these are going to be the standard, this is how we're 

        11     going to choose it, we're going to have a probationary 

        12     period, every year you're required to submit a record 

        13     to the Council  --  this is what you're supposed to be 

        14     doing for the last 18 months.  This is what's called 

        15     writing the law.

        16                  I don't understand.  I don't know whether 

        17     it is the Peter Principle, how much time we give you to 

        18     work this out, this is how much time it's going to work 

        19     out.  We have till the 28th.  Let's try to put together 

        20     a bill.  You submit the six or seven outstanding 

        21     questions and I'll give you my ideas.  I would be glad 

        22     to convene at the Tow Advisory Board  --  

        23                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Can I interject 

        24     something here.  Part of this is very true, we've been 

        25     working on this for a very long time, and we're here and 
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         2     it's like standing still.  And then it's another 18 

         3     months, which brings it to three years, which is a very, 

         4     very long time.

         5                  We'd like to resolve this really sooner 

         6     than 18 months because 18 months is a very long time, 

         7     and we come back here and we hear the same thing.  And 

         8     how long can this go?  It's a pilot program and there 

         9     has to be a specific time for a pilot program.  So I'd 

        10     like to see this done in a shorter time.  

        11                  I don't know if a week is the answer 

        12     because we're dealing here with lives also and I don't 

        13     want to do anything that's haphazard or whatever.  But 

        14     certainly 18 months longer seems to be a very, very long 

        15     time.  It seems that since I'm the Chair of this 

        16     committee and then some, we've been working on this 

        17     issue  --

        18                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  I agree and frankly 

        19     if you put Karen Koslowitz and Captain Kopstein and 

        20     Norman Teitler and whoever else in the room, and say 

        21     let's work out the outstanding issues that have emerged 

        22     over the last 18 months, we have heard  --  I'm not 

        23     sure I want to volunteer you to go in that room  --  but 

        24     we have heard testimony here that this is the greatest 

        25     thing since sliced bread but we don't know for sure 
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         2     where or how we want to do it.  

         3                  I understand that there has been a certain 

         4     level of turnover and there's great deal that the 

         5     Administration is doing with respect to the 

         6     transportation policy, I understand that.  

         7                  But you have to have a heart here.  This 

         8     committee has other business to do.  And you came to us 

         9     and said you were opposed to the bill but you tell me it 

        10     works great, fine, we can make that decision.  You are 

        11     now saying that we want another extension while we work 

        12     out the kinks in this thing.  

        13                  With all due deference, do it now, make it 

        14     priority one for the next 72 hours.  Get everyone 

        15     together, work out whatever questions there are, and if 

        16     you have some concerns and you want to put some escape 

        17     clause in the bill, fine.  For example, you want to give 

        18     yourself a range of time to bring in the precincts, if 

        19     you think the precincts wouldn't work in Manhattan, if 

        20     you want to have a program that every year you reopen 

        21     who gets into the thing, these are things that could be 

        22     done.  It's not going to take that much to work this 

        23     out.  

        24                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  I'm not 

        25     comfortable in doing something that's so important in 
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         2     one week.  However, I feel that another 18 months, 

         3     because another 18 months means that we have had a pilot 

         4     program for almost four years, and that's a very long 

         5     time.  I'm not sure if I'm so comfortable with the one 

         6     week because this is dealing with people and lives and 

         7     everything else, but certainly a lot shorter than 18 

         8     months, since we already have so much time into this 

         9     program already.  

        10                  There has to be some kind of compromise 

        11     because to me it's like taking this program and pushing 

        12     it under the rug again.  And in 18 months I don't want 

        13     to sit here and hear the same thing again and say 

        14     another 18 months.  And in almost four years I think 

        15     that there has to be some solid stuff that we can deal 

        16     with.  

        17                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Madam Chair, I 

        18     would appreciate it though if we could get something  --  

        19     I'm going to ask this of the industry as well  --  just 

        20     a list of what the concerns are and what the outstanding 

        21     questions are after 18 months, and I have a feeling what 

        22     we're going to find is there are four or five issues, 

        23     there's the communications issue, there's how you decide 

        24     the geographic area  --  if we can get some of those 

        25     things then maybe our staff, we will write them a bill 
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         2     and we'll give them their proposal.  We have excellent 

         3     staff on this committee.  

         4                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  No question.

         5                  I have no problem with that but I don't 

         6     want to feel like I'm under a time constraint.  If I 

         7     have to extend this a couple of months I'm willing to do 

         8     that because it's too important to just slip through and 

         9     then be sorry of what we're doing.  However, I agree 

        10     with you, like, I'm tired of dealing with this already 

        11     and making pilot programs, and that's how I feel 

        12     personally.

        13                  Council Member Watkins.

        14                  COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  Thank you.

        15                  I agree with my colleagues and one of my 

        16     concerns has to do with extending the pilot in the same 

        17     pilot areas.  The 105 covers a large part of my Council 

        18     district.  105 is a huge district, it's the largest 

        19     precinct in Queens.  It is almost unfair to the 113, 

        20     which is right next to it, to be excluded from this 

        21     program if it works as well as you say it does because 

        22     just due to the size of the 105, I understand that on 

        23     July 4th the tows, the companies that were in the 

        24     program in the 105 towed approximately four times as 

        25     many cars as the surrounding precincts on that day.
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         2                  So there's an equity and fairness issue 

         3     here also.  It means that those companies that are not 

         4     involved in and those precincts that don't get a piece 

         5     of this action, they're still in DARP, which is not as 

         6     tightly controlled, doesn't work as well, and if it is 

         7     indeed working, continuing to keep it in a pilot in the 

         8     same precincts, what does that do to the other companies 

         9     and the other precincts.  

        10                  It just seems that there's got to be a way 

        11     to even decide that it's working, while you want to iron 

        12     out the few bugs and expand it to all precincts, or if 

        13     it's not as good as you say, dump it and start all over.

        14                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  

        15     Councilwoman, the precincts that participate, the six 

        16     precincts do not have as many accidents as some other 

        17     precincts do.  It's difficult for any of us here to say 

        18     that exactly that it will work in the remaining 

        19     precincts exactly the way it's designed in the existing 

        20     six precincts because there are any number of other 

        21     mitigating circumstances.  

        22                  One of the things we want to do in the 

        23     extension is select a precinct which has some problems 

        24     to see what other kinds of problems we need to deal with 

        25     and be prepared.  I've been involved in a number of 
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         2     towing programs in a number of years implementing street 

         3     operations, and I want to be cautious about running 

         4     headlong into something and saying that yes, it is 

         5     definitely going to be running in all precincts in the 

         6     city on this date in the very near future, and then we 

         7     get to the date and we're back here trying to explain 

         8     why it doesn't work out.  

         9                  I don't know if 18 months is a manageable 

        10     number or not, but to come up with a deal, with a design 

        11     program that's going to work, there may be precincts in 

        12     the city where SARD might not work at all and we may 

        13     have to go to a modified DARP.  I won't know that answer 

        14     until I sit down and look at each of the precincts with 

        15     what the Police Department are telling me.

        16                  COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  I have no 

        17     assurance then that you will know after 18 months, 

        18     because part of that has to do with the selection.  If 

        19     indeed you are looking for precincts that covered all of 

        20     the many possibilities, maybe you needed eight 

        21     precincts, maybe you needed seven, I don't know, or 

        22     maybe you needed different precincts as far as the 

        23     character.

        24                  So if in 18 months you can't tell whether 

        25     it will work in other precincts, that says to me the 
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         2     problem is not length of time, it is the manner of 

         3     selection of those test precincts we use.  What 

         4     assurance do we have that another 18 months will cause 

         5     better selection?

         6                  My point is that even if you have two 

         7     years, once you think you have all the bugs out and the 

         8     program begins all over, there's still going to be 

         9     things that you find that you didn't anticipate.  That 

        10     happens with everything.  I say get a few months, get 

        11     these meetings with our committee staff and the Chair 

        12     and your people, and then go for it.

        13                  Nothing is written in concrete, so that if 

        14     you find something is not working the way you hope, you 

        15     can come back and we can do something.  But this way, 

        16     we've got six out of how many precincts are there in the 

        17     city  --  

        18                  CAPT. C. VOLPE:  Seventy-six.

        19                  COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  So you've got a 

        20     handful, not even a whole hand, and we're going to 

        21     extend it with those.  It just doesn't seem to make good 

        22     sense.  If it's working well, then let's see what the 

        23     possibilities are for improvement, make those 

        24     improvements and modifications and let it fly.

        25                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  There's another 
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         2     thing, the silent dispatch.  When is that going to 

         3     happen?

         4                  CAPT. C. VOLPE:  The digital dispatch, it's 

         5     supposed to be happening, they say, early next year 

         6     sometime, the two different systems are going to be put 

         7     into place.

         8                  I would also like to address another 

         9     issue.  Each precinct that has a SARD system seems to be 

        10     working at this time.  In the 43 Precinct there's only 

        11     two authorized SARD companies; same with the 68.  In the 

        12     105 Precinct itself, because it was such a huge command, 

        13     there was an additional problem that it should be 

        14     addressed, and that's why I don't think you would be 

        15     able to initiate SARD citywide automatically because 

        16     each command is unique in size.  

        17                  Also in some commands there are a 

        18     relatively small number of accidents and then other 

        19     commands that have a large amount of accidents, so it 

        20     would have to be looked at one command at a time.  

        21                  In the 105 Precinct alone it was such a 

        22     unique situation there that what happens is the 

        23     communications division transmits that there's an 

        24     accident to a private dispatcher and there's four 

        25     different companies in that 105 Precinct under SARD.  
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         2     That private dispatcher notifies a company to respond.  

         3     After 30 minutes at that scene of an accident if that 

         4     SARD vehicle hasn't responded, that private dispatcher 

         5     then has to notify the next SARD because of the size of 

         6     that one command itself.  

         7                  In Staten Island how it's designed is it's 

         8     broken down in Sectors East and West and, depending upon 

         9     the month, depending upon the time, depending on the  --  

        10     because of Staten Island's uniqueness  --  

        11                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  What first strikes 

        12     me, that the pilot program has been in place for 18 

        13     months, and now there's an extension of another 18 

        14     months.  What different things are going to happen in 

        15     the next 18 months if you're still doing the same 

        16     program and why in the last 18 months that it has been 

        17     there haven't we come to a conclusion so that we can 

        18     move forward?  

        19                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  It's a fair 

        20     question and perhaps some of the confusion is my fault 

        21     in not making clear what we want to do in the next 18 

        22     months.  Hopefully before 18 months are up we want to 

        23     come to the Council and say this is the bill, to make it 

        24     SARD here, DARP there, and to actually describe the tow 

        25     operation in each precinct and how it will operate. 
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         2                  It's not the pilot or anything else.  We 

         3     would like to add, to pick up one of the toughest 

         4     precincts out there to gain some experience, but the 

         5     idea, at the end of 18 months or sooner, to bring back 

         6     to you exactly what will operate in each district, to 

         7     actually go out there and design the program, run 

         8     through the complications that may exist and come back 

         9     to you with a bill that says this is what will operate 

        10     by law in each of these precincts. 

        11                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  My question is, why 

        12     didn't it happen in the last 18 months?

        13                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  I can't 

        14     answer that question.  I wasn't here  --

        15                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  And I understand 

        16     that and that's true, you weren't here.  But that's our 

        17     frustration.  We were here, we were here and we  --  

        18     it's like you're taking our 18 months that we have been 

        19     here and it's like our time and our energies are just 

        20     saying, well, let's start all over again because now we 

        21     have new people in the agency and let's start over.  

        22                  I feel that if there are going to be 

        23     changes in the agencies, I feel that there has to be a 

        24     continuity in that, that when someone leaves the person 

        25     coming in has to continue on what the person left.  And 
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         2     this is our frustration, because you're only going to be 

         3     on this program for the next 18 months, so to speak, but 

         4     we've been on the program for 36 months.  We will have 

         5     been on for 36 months and it's very frustrating.

         6                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  The first 

         7     period of a pilot program is to find out whether 

         8     something would work and what the difficulties were.  I 

         9     don't think it would have been possible to design how it 

        10     would work citywide  --  in fact, it took up to seven 

        11     months to get operational in Staten Island alone.  So 

        12     the pilot program has not been operating full blown in 

        13     six precincts for 18 months, that has not happened.

        14                  So a lot of the time during this has been 

        15     in preparation to design a program to get the tow 

        16     companies operational in those six precincts.  So I 

        17     don't think it would have been possible to design a 

        18     program for all  --  

        19                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Then why do we have 

        20     the 18 months, what was the 18 months all about?  What 

        21     bothers me is that there are people who live on this, 

        22     it's their livelihoods and they're being left in limbo, 

        23     not knowing what's going on, and I think as government 

        24     we have a responsibility to these people to try to give 

        25     them  --  let them know what's going to happen for the 
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         2     rest of their lives, and that's very frustrating.

         3                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  I think the 

         4     point that we planned to make is why we believe the SARD 

         5     program works but knowing that there are particular 

         6     problems in particular precincts rather than sit here 

         7     today and say we want SARD to operate in all 76 

         8     precincts, that would be foolhardy on my part to do that  

         9     and  --  

        10                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  But the extension 

        11     of the 18 months is the same thing that we had for the 

        12     last 18 months and that's an extension  --  that's all 

        13     we see, we only see we're just extending something that 

        14     we had originally extended for 18 months.

        15                  COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  I just wanted to 

        16     ask a couple of things  --  

        17                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Not yet, I'm sorry.

        18                  Council Member Lasher.

        19                  COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  I'm sorry.

        20                  COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER:  What I don't 

        21     understand can be done is from here, henceforth, you 

        22     went through, on a prior time you went through different 

        23     operations, you're not going to expand, if I understand 

        24     what you're saying, to other different precincts.  Why 

        25     can't this be something that's a rolling type of thing, 
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         2     that as you go to your next precinct, it goes into the 

         3     system, the next one goes into the system, and just keep 

         4     moving forward instead of saying you need a blanket 18 

         5     months and then you'll come back to the Council in 

         6     another 18 months to speak to us?

         7                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  You're 

         8     right, and that is our intention over the 18 months.  

         9     There is no reason why that cannot happen and we can 

        10     support that as we go through a precinct and we have 

        11     things lined up and we can actually implement it, so 

        12     then we would need the authority to implement it.  

        13                  But we can't say that we will definitely 

        14     implement it in all 76 precincts the way it's currently 

        15     in legislation.  So if there's a way to craft it, if you 

        16     have some staff that perhaps can help us word this so 

        17     that we can do that  --  in fact, that's the idea that 

        18     we would like to move forward on.  We don't have to wait 

        19     until the end of 18 months.  That's a good idea that we 

        20     can work on.  

        21                  COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER:  So why can't we 

        22     fashion something if it's necessary as something on a 

        23     rolling basis type of legislation that anybody that 

        24     meets their approval can automatically be put into the 

        25     system as we go along, and that way we can almost get 
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         2     the whole city moving at once, if it seems to be such a 

         3     very, very good program, and just make it work.  

         4                  If you have aberrations that need special 

         5     provisions or special time, put them on the side, do 

         6     your others, get as many as you can working as quickly 

         7     as possible, and then we'll come with special 

         8     legislation on certain districts that don't fall within 

         9     the normal categories.

        10                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  I think 

        11     we're all really talking the same idea here, and perhaps 

        12     it's a matter of my not articulating it, as I said.  I 

        13     think we're all in agreement that the program is a good 

        14     program, and the question is how do we go forward and 

        15     the timing of it.  

        16                  If we can design something in such a way 

        17     that does not lock us into SARD in every single 

        18     precinct, because there may be situations where it won't 

        19     work, if we can write the language in such a way to give 

        20     us that ability and roll them in as they become set up 

        21     and put on line, that's fine, and we can move forward 

        22     with that.  I think that would satisfy the concerns that 

        23     the Council has and I think you're right to be 

        24     concerned, you've been around 18 months, why another 18 

        25     months before we see this citywide  --  
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         2                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  What if something 

         3     changes again?

         4                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  I don't 

         5     disagree, again.  If we can get our suggestions done as 

         6     quickly as possible I would like to work with you on 

         7     that.  

         8                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  There was another 

         9     18 months attached to it.  It's not 36 months, it's 48 

        10     months.  It's a very long time without going anyplace.

        11                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  We don't 

        12     disagree and I think it's a great idea and the sooner we 

        13     work on that language, I know time is very, very, very 

        14     short on this.

        15                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Council Member 

        16     Freed.

        17                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Thank you.

        18                  I share a lot of the concerns and 

        19     frustrations with everyone else up here because none of 

        20     this, so far I've heard, what's going to be different 

        21     this time than the last time.  And looking at staff 

        22     reports for this and your comments, I'm even confused at 

        23     this point as to if tow truck related accidents are up 

        24     or down or the same.

        25                  First, the statistics that you gave us on 
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         2     September 19th I gather weren't even for all of '95, and 

         3     then you said that they're inaccurate and it went from 

         4     118 accidents involving personal injuries to 218.  

         5     That's a hundred accidents.  That's a significant 

         6     difference.  And the tow truck related accidents went up 

         7     144.

         8                  So is there a difference?  Do we see a 

         9     drop, did it go up, did it stay the same?  What are you 

        10     going to do so we get accurate information the next 

        11     time?

        12                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  You're 

        13     right, and it's a good suggestion.  We've got from the 

        14     DMV all the printouts on the accidents.  In going 

        15     through here it is impossible to tell you which of these 

        16     accidents were the result of a tow truck racing to the 

        17     scene, the information is just not there.  

        18                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  You didn't know this 

        19     when this program went into effect that this data 

        20     wouldn't give you the information you needed to know?  

        21     If that's what this pilot program is looking at then 

        22     what's it based on?

        23                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  As we said 

        24     a little earlier, the empirical information with regard 

        25     to accidents involving tow trucks is not valid for us to 
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         2     draw a conclusion based on the data, and what we did 

         3     then in speaking to the Police Department, for the 

         4     people who are on the street and they're there every day 

         5     with the accidents, they have told us that there has 

         6     been a dramatic decrease in some cases, of elimination 

         7     of tow trucks racing to scenes.  The number of L.D. 6's 

         8     for tow trucks appearing at scenes for unsolicited tows 

         9     has dropped dramatically and in some cases have almost 

        10     been eliminated.  

        11                  So we based our recommendation on this 

        12     information than on this data that was presented in the 

        13     original report that was incomplete.  The more complete 

        14     data came out much after the report was released and 

        15     when you look at that data, you're right, the numbers go 

        16     up, and we said, well, we find that you can't sort that 

        17     information out from the data from DMV.  

        18                  So then the next step was to take a look at 

        19     other information that might indicate whether or not the 

        20     program was working and we went to the Police Department 

        21     and we discussed with them what their impressions were 

        22     and how they thought the program was operating.  

        23                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  I have nothing 

        24     against the Police Department, but I am amazed that we 

        25     are basing it on that. 
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         2                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  One element 

         3     is call-your-own-tow.  The other element is that there 

         4     was not rotational selection of tow trucks when a 

         5     vehicle was in an accident, that for a specific period 

         6     of hours during the day a specific tow truck would be 

         7     responsible for responding to the tow, so there are 

         8     actually a couple of elements in this program, not just 

         9     the elimination of the call-your-own-tow prohibition.  

        10                  As you look through the department's 

        11     report, one of the things we say about the data is that 

        12     during this period of time, particularly in the fact 

        13     that the program was instituted in some precincts and 

        14     didn't operate for the full 18 months, in fact there 

        15     wasn't any district where it did actually operate for 18 

        16     months, so the data to look at is skimpy at best  -- 

        17                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  The first three that 

        18     operated since March of '95?

        19                  MR. A. EILER:  I'm Andrew Eiler, chief 

        20     research analyst for the Consumer Affairs Department.

        21                  That's correct, the program went into 

        22     effect in '94, the rules didn't become implemented until 

        23     December of '94, and the first SARD districts became 

        24     operationalized in March of '95, so then when the first 

        25     program was extended there was very little data 
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         2     available since the program had only been operational 

         3     for six months at that time in those districts.  

         4                  So the second period that the program in 

         5     Staten Island didn't get operationalized until April, 

         6     because it took a quite a period of time to get the 

         7     system set up and moving because of the whole host of 

         8     issues that had been resolved, with the number of tow 

         9     companies, how that would be co-merged with the Police 

        10     Department operational system, and this is the kind of 

        11     stuff that we have to address in expanding the SARD.  

        12                  Our goal, the law has been in effect for a 

        13     very long period, the implementation of the program has 

        14     gone  --  there's been a lag time bringing it on board, 

        15     making it operational.  That's where we stand.  So that 

        16     was part of the issue in terms of getting the data to 

        17     match the operations to make comparisons, and that's not 

        18     very easy to do because of the way the data is cut.

        19                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  But you're saying 

        20     you're not going to go by the data anyway?

        21                  MR. A. EILER:  What we found is it's very 

        22     difficult from that data to make effective judgments on 

        23     whether or not there is any impact on accidents not 

        24     calling their own tow.  

        25                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  What are we going to 
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         2     do?  

         3                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  How do you plan on 

         4     doing it?  Now you're asking for an extension of 18 

         5     months.  Since it takes so long, since we haven't been 

         6     able to do it, let's say, in 36 months, how will we be 

         7     able to get the additional data or all the data we need 

         8     in the next 18 months?

         9                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Again, 

        10     this 18 months is not to evaluate the program anymore.  

        11     It is our recommendation that the program works based on 

        12     information from the street cop who is out there working 

        13     with it every day.  It is very difficult if not 

        14     impossible from an accident report to know where that 

        15     tow truck was going.  Even if the report says the tow 

        16     truck was driving at excessive speed and even if the 

        17     report said that the tow truck was making illegal turns, 

        18     it is not possible for the report to know where that guy 

        19     was going.  

        20                  So accident information, while one could 

        21     try to make rather general assumptions that if the 

        22     accidents are eliminated from calling your own tow goes 

        23     down then overall accidents should go down, and that's a 

        24     rather difficult assumption to make  --  

        25                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  But we'll never be 
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         2     able to make that assumption.

         3                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  That's 

         4     correct, but what we're basing it on is the police 

         5     experience in the street.  And all those numbers are 

         6     done and their experience in the street is that it has 

         7     virtually eliminated chasing.

         8                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  I understand that.  

         9     It's just a very frustrating procedure, and like, I 

        10     don't want to extend something another 18 months  -- 

        11                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  What we're 

        12     looking to do is to implement it precinct by precinct as 

        13     we get them on line.

        14                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  But then we could 

        15     just do a schedule today and figure out when each 

        16     precinct is going to come in.  

        17                  I have a basic question.  When the numbers 

        18     were down you said the program is a terrific success, 

        19     but now it looks like the numbers are the same.  It 

        20     would be interesting to see what happened in the 

        21     non-pilot districts, did numbers go down there, did they 

        22     stay the same, what happened in those.  Maybe it's 

        23     because we're doing zero tolerance in the Police 

        24     Department and maybe they're all done and it has nothing 

        25     to do with this program.  
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         2                  And I still didn't get an answer about 

         3     consumer complaints.

         4                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Some of the 

         5     narrative on page 12 of the report speaks to that.  This 

         6     information, I think you're right, I think the mistake I 

         7     made in putting numbers together for a report, the 

         8     initial set of numbers looked so obvious that the 

         9     accidents were down we didn't go further to look for 

        10     additional information.  

        11                  When it was brought to our attention at 

        12     that time, DMV information which was now more complete  

        13     --  remember, the DMV information that we got some of 

        14     our data from was not complete at the time of the report  

        15     --  we take a look at it and say, gee, accidents are the 

        16     same.  Perhaps they've gone up, fatalities have gone 

        17     down, that we clearly know.  

        18                  And so then we say to ourselves, if the 

        19     empirical data shouldn't suggest that, is there anything 

        20     else out there that would suggest the program is or is 

        21     not a success, so we looked for other information that 

        22     would help us get that information and that information 

        23     exists in the street cop who's out there with the tow 

        24     companies and with the accidents.  

        25                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  But what happened in 
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         2     the areas that didn't have SARD, did you have the same 

         3     drop in those areas that you had in SARD?  Because if 

         4     you're going to use empirical data you better be 

         5     comparing it to something else, and maybe it's because 

         6     the Police Department has initiated, or that they've 

         7     initiated a system that's simply cracked down on a 

         8     system which is in this case invalid  --

         9                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  There are 

        10     two elements to this bill.  One is the elimination of 

        11     call-your-own-tow, which is citywide.  

        12                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  I know.

        13                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  So the 

        14     police reporting that illegal tow trucks are showing up 

        15     at the scene is a citywide phenomenon.  

        16                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay.

        17                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  So that's 

        18     not invalid.

        19                  With regard to SARD we're talking about a 

        20     specific tow company that can operate in those SARD 

        21     districts.  So the answer is yes, the police information 

        22     that they're giving us on unauthorized tow trucks 

        23     showing up is a citywide phenomenon, not just SARD 

        24     districts.

        25                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  So the frustration 
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         2     is now other than the anecdotal information that you're 

         3     getting from the cops who are at these accidents, you 

         4     don't even know if that works.  So what has been the 

         5     reaction  --  because it's my understanding, and our 

         6     investigative unit did some investigation that said some 

         7     of these consumer complaints are up in these areas, so 

         8     if they are, maybe there's something that's not working 

         9     here, and how do we address that?

        10                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Let me go 

        11     back to the first point because I want to finish up one 

        12     question before  -- 

        13                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  But I asked this one 

        14     ten minutes ago.

        15                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  But I at 

        16     least want to come back to the issue about the SARD 

        17     program itself because the report also talked about the 

        18     reduced amount of time it takes a tow truck to show up 

        19     at the scene of an accident.  We keep mixing the two 

        20     elements of this legislation together, the 

        21     call-your-own-tow and SARD, and they're two different 

        22     things.  The program does work.  The amount of time it 

        23     takes for the tow company to show up is reduced 

        24     dramatically.

        25                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  So it's actually 
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         2     less time for the tow trucks to show up?

         3                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Remember 

         4     what was happening in the SARD programs and SARD 

         5     districts is that, remember the tow companies were 

         6     listening in on the frequencies and able to hear about 

         7     it beforehand so  --

         8                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  I'm really having 

         9     trouble figuring out how you got from Step A to Step B 

        10     and the recommendations that you're making based on 

        11     what, and then the next step, as Anthony had asked, I 

        12     don't really know from what you're saying other than the 

        13     information you're getting from the guys on the beat 

        14     that this is working or not working.

        15                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Again, with 

        16     regard to the information we're getting from the police 

        17     officers on the street, we're talking about the 

        18     prohibition of call-your-own-tow and they are saying 

        19     that their experience at the scene of an accident is 

        20     that that is no longer happening or it's reduced 

        21     dramatically. 

        22                  The other element is whether or not there's 

        23     time reduced by companies showing up to the scene of an 

        24     accident.  That we have information on.  That's put in 

        25     the report, that has not been contradicted.  There has 
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         2     not been a problem with that data.  So yes, both 

         3     elements of the program work  --  well, you shake your 

         4     head, but I'm trying to answer the question.  

         5                  And what am I failing to do here?  There 

         6     are two elements, the SARD part, which you have only one 

         7     tow company show up, there's a dramatic amount of 

         8     reduction in the amount of time.  In the DARP they would 

         9     send a scout, if they don't like what they find at the 

        10     scene of an accident they wouldn't show up.  With SARD 

        11     they would show up.  

        12                  The question becomes, what do we use to 

        13     base our recommendation that the call-your-own-tow 

        14     prohibition is working?  Empirical date and accidents 

        15     that appears in DMV is not data that would be valued in 

        16     making that recommendation.  What we are basing the 

        17     recommendation on is the information that we're getting 

        18     from the Police Department on what's going on in the 

        19     street.

        20                  And consumer complaints, we look on page 

        21     12, the number of consumer complaints has dropped 

        22     substantially during this same period.  But you have 

        23     complaint frequency data to indicate a qualitative 

        24     difference between a SARD and DARP authorized company.  

        25     There are too few companies to determine if there is a 

               COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS                      90

         1

         2     big difference between SARD and SARD.  But complaints 

         3     overall have decreased.

         4                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay.

         5                  I hardly know what to respond to that.  

         6     Because I know we did have the staff report that did 

         7     show that there were a number of complaints that 

         8     customers were unhappy about aspects of this, and I 

         9     don't know if it's the competition aspect or other 

        10     things that obviously should be looked at that we would 

        11     like to see addressed, or when you come back and say 

        12     there are too few companies  -- 

        13                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  If you're 

        14     trying to empirically and statistically make a 

        15     comparison you have a problem with your measurement 

        16     area.  Your number is too small.  There are a number of 

        17     complaints that were brought to our attention and we 

        18     spoke to your staff, and I think you're right, there 

        19     were some complaints and the department has to do more 

        20     and will be doing more auditing to make sure that 

        21     doesn't occur.  

        22                  But you're right, there are going to be 

        23     complaints no matter what kind of program we will put in 

        24     place.  Some will be legitimate; some will not be 

        25     legitimate.  They all need to be addressed.  We do 
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         2     respond and do mediate and address them and get them 

         3     resolved.  

         4                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Your report actually 

         5     said that SARD didn't do as well as DARP on complaints,  

         6     it's too small to be significant?

         7                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Right, it's 

         8     too small to draw any significant conclusions from that.  

         9     We didn't know how many complaints you have going into 

        10     it, how many tows going into it.  So if you have three 

        11     tows and there's a complaint against one of them, 

        12     there's 33 percent.  Now the number is just too small to 

        13     make 33 percent a valid measure.  But I think that you 

        14     make an excellent point that we have to be more vigilant 

        15     in protecting consumers.

        16                  COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  What usually happens 

        17     is that whoever is in the SARD program realizes that 

        18     someone is looking over their shoulder and that you make 

        19     remedies severe enough or that there's a penalty there 

        20     that they lose it, or then my guess is this won't 

        21     happen, but then I would like to make sure that that's 

        22     part of the legislation.

        23                  I thank you.

        24                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  It seems that the 

        25     last 18 month period that we've had this study, we've 
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         2     had this program out there, you have made some very 

         3     fundamental errors in trying to decide whether it's a 

         4     success.  You say you got reams of data there that make 

         5     no indication whether tow trucks are involved in 

         6     accidents. 

         7                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  No, all of 

         8     this information comes from DMV that indicates that a 

         9     tow truck was involved in an accident.

        10                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  I understand the 

        11     point  -- 

        12                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Not only 

        13     that, you don't know if the car was at fault  --  

        14                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Fine.  Are they up 

        15     or down, tow truck accidents?

        16                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Accidents 

        17     involving a tow truck are higher than last year.  

        18                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Higher in the SARD 

        19     areas?

        20                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Citywide.  

        21                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Are they higher in 

        22     the SARD areas?

        23                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  I don't 

        24     know.  

        25                  Excuse me, Councilman, the issue here is 
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         2     whether the accidents speak to the elimination of the 

         3     prohibition of the call-your-own-tow, which citywide, 

         4     the data need to be looked at citywide.  

         5                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  There are two 

         6     questions here, about SARD as a replacement for DARP 

         7     work, and whether the call-your-own-tow is a good 

         8     policy.  You say you have anecdotal information, which 

         9     we don't do very well here, unless you plan to bring in 

        10     those officers here.  We don't like it very much because 

        11     it's in your interest to say that the anecdotal 

        12     information  -- 

        13                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Why would 

        14     it be in my interest? 

        15                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Because there is 

        16     the Police Department proposal for  --  you want this to 

        17     work  --

        18                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  It's not in 

        19     my interest  --  

        20                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Let me ask you 

        21     this, very simply, in the SARD areas are accidents 

        22     involving tow trucks up or down?  

        23                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  I don't 

        24     know the answer.  

        25                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  You should, simply.
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         2                  Secondly, any effort at all over the course 

         3     of the last 18 months to have the officers compile any 

         4     information on their experiences in the field, any 

         5     notation that's going on, summonses dealing with tow 

         6     trucks, any effort to gather data on your efforts to cut 

         7     down on speeding, going through red lights, anything 

         8     like that, any information to show, that we can use to 

         9     show whether this program has been a success.

        10                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Councilman, 

        11     we have information to show this program is a success.  

        12     In the report it talks about very clearly the amount of 

        13     time it takes for a tow truck to show up at the scene of 

        14     an accident.  This is the difference between SARD and 

        15     DARP.  

        16                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Incorrect, sir.   I 

        17     can't call AAA any more.

        18                  I'm saying your information is invalid.  It 

        19     doesn't show what you think it shows.  You know what, 

        20     that's because I can't get on a cellular phone and call 

        21     AAA anymore  -- 

        22                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  You can't 

        23     do that citywide either  --

        24                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  I'm trying to find 

        25     any shred of data that supports the argument that either 
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         2     SARD is working or  --

         3                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  The 

         4     information in the report indicates that SARD works 

         5     because the amount of time it takes for a tow to show up 

         6     at the scene is down dramatically and that's because 

         7     DARP tow companies cannot show up, decide they don't 

         8     want to take it and leave and then we have to wait 

         9     another 30 minutes, so there is data in the initial 

        10     report that does suggest that the SARD concept works.  

        11     We do not have empirical data to suggest that citywide 

        12     the elimination of call-your-own-tow reduces accidents.  

        13     The information that the DMV has  --  

        14                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Let me explain very 

        15     briefly why what you just said is what statisticians 

        16     call a logical fallacy.

        17                  If I am in the SARD zone, a DARP zone or 

        18     any other zone, where I can no longer call the company I 

        19     want, or is going to add to the average time of each 

        20     call that I'm calling my own man, all statistics should 

        21     show that everything goes down citywide.  You have taken 

        22     away my choice as a consumer and supplanted it with your 

        23     choice, much quicker and efficient.  If I wanted to call 

        24     my dealer in Yonkers to bring a flatbed truck, I'm going 

        25     to wait for 45 minutes.
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         2                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  I would 

         3     suggest you're making an assumption based on no facts 

         4     whatsoever.  

         5                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  That's something 

         6     you and I have in common.

         7                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  With all 

         8     due respect, you have to understand that the 

         9     call-your-own-tow prohibition is implemented citywide.  

        10     Now the difference between the DARP and the SARD is the 

        11     SARD is the only company that can show up.  In all of 

        12     the other districts you still have the same problem with 

        13     the DARP company showing up and deciding that they don't 

        14     want the tow and leaving, so the amount of time it 

        15     takes under the DARP program is still higher than it is 

        16     under the SARD program.

        17                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  I understand you 

        18     have no evidence of that, you have no evidence, sir.  

        19     Sir, if I can just explain, I am drawing a conclusion 

        20     why the time is down.  You are drawing a conclusion why 

        21     the time is down.  You have as much data as I do.  Think 

        22     about it.

        23                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  If you look 

        24     on page 69 of the report, Table 2, it clearly shows some 

        25     information with regard to response time to the 
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         2     accident.

         3                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Why don't you read 

         4     it to me.

         5                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  If you have 

         6     a copy of the report  --  it's rather long and it's a 

         7     table.  I'll provide you with a copy.

         8                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Can a DARP company 

         9     show up under the current law and then leave?

        10                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  That's 

        11     correct.  And they get a violation if they do.  

        12                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  So they can't.  

        13     They're prohibited from doing it same way  -- 

        14                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  When a DARP 

        15     company is called they are supposed to show up to the 

        16     scene.  A lot of times they do not show up.  Some DARP 

        17     companies, in fact there was one that was issued a 

        18     violation for showing up and refusing in a DARP district 

        19     to make a tow.  

        20                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  And that same is 

        21     true in the SARD district, isn't that the case?

        22                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  The 

        23     difference is that a DARP program is on a rotational 

        24     basis and that's not the case, so the law is different 

        25     in the two districts.  
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         2                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Someone is called 

         3     for DARP, they're required to go; someone is called for 

         4     SARD, they're required to go.  

         5                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  The 

         6     difference between the two is SARD is on a rotating 

         7     basis.  

         8                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  If someone is 

         9     called under SARD or DARP, they're required to go.  The 

        10     law is the same.

        11                  Okay, thank you.

        12                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Thank you very 

        13     much.  And we'll be talking during the week.

        14                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER T. MATTEO:  Thank you.

        15                  Peter O'Connell. 

        16                  MR. P. O'CONNELL:  Good morning.  For those 

        17     of you who were here at the last meeting, you may 

        18     recall, my name is Peter O'Connell and I'm an attorney 

        19     from Albany and I represent the Empire State Towing and 

        20     Recovery Association.

        21                  Before I begin my remarks, I provided the 

        22     committee before the meeting with a copy of DMV's final 

        23     data and the numbers are actually up one accident from 

        24     the numbers of the Police Department had.  But these 

        25     numbers were just finalized yesterday afternoon and I do 
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         2     have to agree that the numbers don't give a true picture 

         3     of where accidents are, how they happen, whether chasing 

         4     is involved, they're just raw numbers.  

         5                   Our belief in the towing industry, talking 

         6     to different people who have been involved for some 

         7     time, would indicate that in the city perhaps the more 

         8     serious accidents and the greater frequency of accidents 

         9     may actually be on the arterials, which stands to 

        10     reason.  And of course neither SARD nor DARP are 

        11     involved in arterial tows.  So that does account for a 

        12     lot of the accidents in the city, those particular 

        13     highways.

        14                  I handed up some testimony where I come in 

        15     kind of between where the department is and what Mr. 

        16     Weiner, for one, has been asking for.  I too believe 

        17     that the 18 months is far too long.  I had a proposal 

        18     that would call for a six month extender with a report 

        19     to be issued by February 1st and final legislation in 

        20     place by April 28th.

        21                  My proposal, as you may recall from the 

        22     last time, does go way beyond the ambit of both SARD and 

        23     DARP.  I have other problems with the city law that I am 

        24     trying to get the city to focus on and those issues are 

        25     ones that I would like to have addressed as well, but 
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         2     maybe this isn't the time or the place to discuss them.

         3                  A couple of comments, if I may, on the SARD 

         4     and DARP programs.  What I tried to emphasize when I was 

         5     here once before, we have no great quarrel with the 

         6     programs.  Our problems are ones that relate mostly to 

         7     fairness, particularly when under SARD you divide the 

         8     city up for precinct basis, for the most part, you can 

         9     wind up with no more than two tow truck operators in 

        10     each precinct.  We understand why this is so attractive 

        11     to the Police Department.  It's really a no-brainer.  

        12     You just hit your automatic dial and you got the tow 

        13     truck.  You know who it is at all times.  

        14                  We would submit that there has to be 

        15     another element of fairness brought into this process, 

        16     is to allow for some type of a rotation system.  I heard 

        17     the criticisms from the previous speaker on the failures 

        18     of the rotation system under the DARP programs, and 

        19     those are very valid comments.  Why can't they under the 

        20     program rotate towers on a tour by tour basis or even a 

        21     week by week basis?  That way you wouldn't have the 

        22     problems of people showing up for a tow and then leaving 

        23     for the next tow on the list.

        24                  There are ways to address these issues and 

        25     I'm just hoping that the Council will ensure that the 
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         2     issues are examined when the law is opened up.

         3                  Two other problems.  As I mentioned in my 

         4     previous testimony, many of the members of my client's 

         5     group do not have repair shop license, they do not have 

         6     the estimators licenses and things such as that.  They 

         7     are strictly professional towers.  They're being 

         8     automatically excluded from the programs, and we feel 

         9     that that is wrong and we've asked that that be given 

        10     redress as well.

        11                  There are also problems creeping into the 

        12     existing DARP and SARD programs which should also be 

        13     addressed involving commercial vehicles.  The provision 

        14     of the law that allows vehicles over 15,000 pounds to 

        15     call their own tower simply isn't being honored.  We 

        16     have a tower in the room that just lost a tow.  It was a 

        17     26,000 pound vehicle and he was turned away from it.

        18                  These are problems in the system that we 

        19     would hope in the next few months when you take a look 

        20     at it that you will give us an opportunity to 

        21     participate in the process.  And let's open it up, let's 

        22     not cut it down to two participants in each precinct.  

        23     Let's open it up, make sure the people are qualified and 

        24     let them all have an opportunity to participate in this, 

        25     and we couldn't ask for any more than that.

               COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS                      102

         1

         2                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  I would like to ask 

         3     you a question.  In your expertise in dealing with 

         4     towing companies that aren't in the program, do you feel 

         5     that chasing is down?  Can you honestly say that you 

         6     feel that the program has eliminated some of the chasing 

         7     that's been going on?

         8                  MR. P. O'CONNELL:  The information that I 

         9     get, of course, comes from the members of my 

        10     association, most of whom are not in the program.  I 

        11     will tell you that in many parts of the city chasing is 

        12     down, and it's more of a question of economics.  

        13                  A lot of the chasing is down, they would 

        14     argue, in some poorer sections of the Bronx where the 

        15     cars that are involved in the accidents usually aren't 

        16     of a type that the chase shop would be interested in.  

        17     So in areas such as that they will tell you that chasing 

        18     is down.  They will say in the more affluent areas where 

        19     there's a likelihood of an expensive vehicle being in an 

        20     accident, there is still chasing.  

        21                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  How do you know 

        22     what kind of cars, a 1992 Continental?  

        23                  MR. P. O'CONNELL:  That's a very good 

        24     question that I can't answer.  I guess just geographical 

        25     preference.
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         2                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  I think you meant 

         3     to say that's not why chasing is down.

         4                  MR. P. O'CONNELL:  The question to me was, 

         5     is chasing down, and I'm passing along what I have been 

         6     told, that it is the belief of people that I have spoken 

         7     to that in parts of the city chasing is down.  Whether 

         8     it is attributable to the efforts of SARD and DARP, I 

         9     don't know.  Their guess is that the cars in these 

        10     particular areas aren't worth chasing.

        11                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  That's insane.

        12                  MR. P. O'CONNELL:  We've heard a lot of 

        13     insanity today.

        14                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  That sounds like 

        15     the testimony of someone who has no idea of how the 

        16     program works.  There is no information in one precinct 

        17     or another that it's down and there's no evidence that 

        18     chasing is down.  We haven't heard any evidence that 

        19     chasing is down.  Because someone conjectured, there's 

        20     no evidence that there's chasing more in one 

        21     neighborhood or another.

        22                  MR. P. O'CONNELL:  As I say, they are 

        23     examples that were given to me by people in the 

        24     business.  That is their personal belief. 

        25                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Thank you very 
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         2     much.

         3                  MR. P. O'CONNELL:  You're welcome.

         4                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  The next witness is 

         5     Norman Teitler.

         6                  MR. N. TEITLER:  Good morning.  My name is 

         7     Norman Teitler.  I'm the director of Metropolitan New 

         8     York Towing and Auto Body Association.

         9                  As I heard today, we have the same opinion, 

        10     we keep revisiting this issue time and time again.  This 

        11     Administration has created a vacuum in the hierarchy at 

        12     the Department of Consumer Affairs because over the last 

        13     three months anybody who had any institutional memory 

        14     has left, and the same with the Police Department.

        15                  If we extend this program 18 months, we 

        16     have a mayoralty election, maybe we will have a new 

        17     Mayor, and he'll appoint new people and they  -- 

        18                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  But I think we all 

        19     agree that 18 months is too long.

        20                  MR. N. TEITLER:  We have gone over data, we 

        21     have gone over street discussions, at least industry 

        22     has.  I have spoken to over 145 companies that 

        23     participate in either DARP or SARD.  In effect, every 

        24     single company participates in DARP.  And industry feels 

        25     SARD should be permanent.  SARD should be expanded in 
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         2     this city over an 18 to 24 month period.  That would 

         3     allow the Police Department and Consumer Affairs time to 

         4     work out the logistics of implementation.  

         5                  There is nobody in the industry who 

         6     believes that we could take SARD and make it go into 

         7     every precinct in the city overnight.  But the 

         8     precincts that were picked and have been operational 

         9     have addressed all of the concerns that this Council, 

        10     Administration and industry need to know the answers to.

        11                  Between 1:00 this afternoon and 9:00 Monday 

        12     morning is 68 hours.  Monday morning each member of this 

        13     Council will have a bill on their desk that takes the 

        14     current legislation and makes the additional few changes 

        15     that have been done so that bill can then be 

        16     considered.  

        17                  Now whether any member of this Council 

        18     decides to submit that as an intro is up to them.  But 

        19     my staff and I will work this entire weekend to put a 

        20     bill on every member of this committee's desk, including 

        21     the Chairwoman, and that bill will address bringing this 

        22     program citywide.  

        23                  Now I do understand that we may not be able 

        24     to do that prior to October 28th and pass that 

        25     legislation.  If we can't, and most likely neither I nor 
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         2     you believe we can, then  --  

         3                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  To be truthful with 

         4     you, when it comes to people's lives I have a very 

         5     serious problem in doing something in a week.  And I 

         6     think you would feel the same way.

         7                  MR. N. TEITLER:  I understand that 

         8     totally.  I have worked with Barbara and Jim, counsel to 

         9     this committee, many times.  We have a very good working 

        10     relationship.  We will sit down and try and work out all 

        11     of the kinks over the winter maybe so that we can come 

        12     back here and bring this program citywide.

        13                  Someone asked, how do we know chasing is 

        14     down?  You know chasing is down because you go into a 

        15     precinct and you take every company that has a tow truck 

        16     and you bring them into a room, which we have done, and 

        17     you ask them, what happens in their business on a 24 

        18     hour a day basis.  They tell us that chasing is down and 

        19     it's down especially in the SARD areas for a very simple 

        20     economic reason.  

        21                  If I am the SARD company assigned to that 

        22     precinct in that time slot, in essence own, if you want 

        23     to use that for want of a better expression, the right 

        24     to go to the scene of an accident and if some car has to 

        25     be towed, that belongs to me.  If you chase and try to 
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         2     beat me there, you're putting your hand in my pocket and 

         3     taking my cash out of my pocket.  In the towing industry 

         4     that doesn't happen.  

         5                  So industry, not the Police Department, and 

         6     not the Administration, but industry has made sure that 

         7     at least in the SARD precincts chasing stopped.  And I'm 

         8     not talking about a five percent decrease or a 20 

         9     percent decrease, I bet it's almost a 98 percent 

        10     decrease.  If there was a hundred instances of chases in 

        11     a time period under DARP, that's down to two under SARD 

        12     and maybe even less.  It just doesn't happen.  

        13                  Industry knows that SARD will work.  We 

        14     heard Captain Volpe from the Police Department tell us 

        15     today that the Police Department says experience says 

        16     SARD has worked.  We may argue with stories that come 

        17     from police officers in the field but there are enough 

        18     police officers at the scene of an accident that talk to 

        19     sergeants, that talk to lieutenants, so the word gets up 

        20     to the top that this is a good program that is beginning 

        21     to work in the streets.    

        22                  Madam Chair, if we extend the program, it 

        23     should be for a very short period of time so we can put, 

        24     as Council Member Weiner said, a real bill together that 

        25     adds a few minor changes here and there, setting up a 
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         2     time period for implementation to bring it citywide, so 

         3     neither the Police Department, the Consumer Affairs that 

         4     has to do the inspections to see who qualifies, not 

         5     industry, is overwhelmed.

         6                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  What do you 

         7     consider a fair time?

         8                  MR. N. TEITLER:  To bring the program 

         9     citywide should be done borough by borough.  The reason 

        10     we cannot do it precinct by precinct is very simple.  

        11     When you take and you create SARD, in the 112 Precinct 

        12     there are people who may have businesses in the 107 

        13     Precinct who are, and were, previously earning and 

        14     picking up towing jobs in the 112 are now cut out.  

        15     They're not given extra work someplace else, they're 

        16     just cut out.  If you say we'll go the opposite 

        17     direction and go to the 104 or 107  --  I'm using Queens 

        18     because you know those precincts.  

        19                  So when you do it precinct by precinct, you 

        20     economically hurt business.  When you do it on a 

        21     borough-wide basis under DARP today because mostly all 

        22     the companies that will qualify for SARD are on DARP 

        23     today, there might be some additional but the bulk of 

        24     them are companies who are currently on the DARP 

        25     program.
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         2                  If we go borough by borough under the DARP, 

         3     no company in Queens goes into Brooklyn, no company in 

         4     Staten Island goes into Brooklyn, no company from Staten 

         5     Island goes into the Bronx.  So if we do it as we did in 

         6     Staten Island on a borough-wide basis, which may take 

         7     four months for each borough, that we then implement it 

         8     over, for argument's sake, four months, which is just 

         9     over a year, maybe it would take a year, maybe 18 

        10     months, the kinks, with the radios going silent  --  

        11     industry has already started to address, several members 

        12     of the Council were in the luncheon that we had, and 

        13     members of the Police Department  --  

        14                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  It was a breakfast, 

        15     wasn't it?

        16                  MR. N. TEITLER:  It was a luncheon, and we 

        17     had people who worked with other cities where the radio 

        18     did go silent and they interfaced between industry, the 

        19     Police Department, so that calls could still be 

        20     transmitted without jeopardizing the Police Department's 

        21     confidentiality and integrity.

        22                  And that's something that we are in the 

        23     process of working on because we already know that the 

        24     radios are going silent.  The money is already in the 

        25     budget, it's been appropriated, and it's just a matter 
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         2     of training police officers and installing equipment.

         3                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Well, that's the 

         4     big problem.

         5                  MR. N. TEITLER:  The commissioner of the 

         6     Department of Consumer Affairs and his staff deal with 

         7     many industries; towing is only one of them.  This 

         8     Council deals with a lot of issues; towing is only one.  

         9     The Police Department deals with many, many issues, 

        10     including crime and policing; and towing is only one.

        11                  The people who own towing businesses and 

        12     our association only deal with one thing, towing.  We 

        13     know what will work, we know what is working, we know 

        14     how to make any new program operational.  All we ask is 

        15     your help.  We're willing to sit with you and help you 

        16     in any way we can.  We will make sure that Monday, you 

        17     have something that begins to address what you have 

        18     expressed today from the table, from the Council people 

        19     here.  You want to know a direction to go and what can 

        20     be implemented in the future.

        21                  I'll answer any questions.

        22                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  Mr. Teitler, we 

        23     have through the course of time, DCA and your industry 

        24     have been inextricably linked with DARP, with the 

        25     elimination of call-your-own-man, and the reason was no 
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         2     matter what you did on a rotational basis it's going to 

         3     be a problem.  

         4                  I have a problem with that, as you know, 

         5     but if the radio is going to go silent what is the 

         6     rationale then for banning call-your-own-man?

         7                  MR. N. TEITLER:  If the radio goes silent 

         8     what they have done in other cities is they have 

         9     installed in the companies that participate in the 

        10     program, for the SARD companies, they have installed a 

        11     terminal in their offices in which the calls come 

        12     electronically  --

        13                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  I understand.  

        14     How does the chaser get it then?

        15                  MR. N. TEITLER:  It's illegal in the City 

        16     of New York to have a scanner in a tow truck today but 

        17     people do because you go to Radio Shack and you buy it.  

        18     We all know that you can hack into a computer system.  

        19     People do it and creates catastrophes all over the 

        20     country.  You read about the 14 year old high school 

        21     hack getting into military systems.

        22                  There still will be that opportunity if you 

        23     can call your own tower for somebody possibly to 

        24     intercept that call or even a different way.  I now go 

        25     to the scene of an accident.  I know that John Jones is 
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         2     towing in this site for this time period so I put a car 

         3     on to follow him.  They go to the scene of the accident 

         4     and I'm there.  I'm in a car.  I walk over to the people 

         5     and try to solicit their towing business.  If you can 

         6     call your own tower that individual whose car was in an 

         7     accident can say to the policeman, I called my friend 

         8     from my cellular phone, he's coming in two minutes  --

         9                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  But the problem is 

        10     right now a lot of that has been eliminated because 

        11     you're taking money out of somebody's pocket.  It 

        12     strikes me that one of the things that I find most 

        13     troubling as a free market guy is the elimination of the 

        14     call-your-own-man.  We just heard a panel of people who 

        15     couldn't tell us anything about the success of that 

        16     program.  All they said is that there are less people 

        17     showing up to the scene.  

        18                  Would you be prepared to consider doing an 

        19     extension of the SARD citywide but at the time that 

        20     this silent call goes out allowing people to call their 

        21     own man because, yeah, you're right, but you testified 

        22     before you can buy an $80 scanner at Radio Shack to pick 

        23     up radio calls.  It's going to be a pretty heavy 

        24     investment to pick up a digital computer, because then I 

        25     think what we can really determine is how effective SARD 
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         2     is.  

         3                  The problem with a lot of this is the 

         4     result of the call-your-own-man provision is getting 

         5     blurred in the results of the SARD-DARP experiment.  We 

         6     can't tell what is causing the success, or even if there 

         7     is any.

         8                  MR. N. TEITLER:  I won't say at this point 

         9     that I could make a commitment but we'll start looking 

        10     at it.

        11                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  If we're going to 

        12     bring in the silent communication to stop the bad guys 

        13     from intercepting the communication, I think as an 

        14     offset for that advance in technology we should give 

        15     consumers back the right that we have taken away from 

        16     them, to call AAA or whoever.  So the ability to get 

        17     information was always seen as the reason to stop the 

        18     call-your-own-man.  Maybe that's something we can give 

        19     back to make this program a little more palatable.

        20                  MR. N. TEITLER:  As Council Member Watkins 

        21     said before, if we pass a piece of legislation, for 

        22     argument's sake in April, March, February  --  nothing 

        23     is written in stone.  If something changes that requires 

        24     in reality or operational that requires this Council 

        25     because of that to revisit and change some aspect of the 
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         2     law, then we will look into it at that time.  

         3                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  The Chair asked a  

         4     question, and I'm not sure I understand, was not how 

         5     long it should be implemented had but how long do you 

         6     think we need to put together a piece of legislation 

         7     from our perspective.

         8                  MR. N. TEITLER:  When I say four months, I 

         9     mean the following:  To put the legislation together we 

        10     could have it next week.  It will be on your desk 

        11     Monday.  But let's assume we still have to deal with it 

        12     and come to some agreement, to hold hearings.  So it 

        13     could take four to six months.

        14                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  My feeling is 

        15     absolutely next week would be a very poor time.  I feel 

        16     it would be irresponsible on the Council's part because 

        17     we're dealing with lives and, like I said before, I 

        18     think that 18 months is a ridiculous amount of time.  It 

        19     is much too long.  But I feel that what I want to do is 

        20     put a piece of legislation, a good piece of legislation, 

        21     whether it takes four months, six months, that will 

        22     ensure people's safety, and that is good.  And I don't 

        23     think we need another 18 months to do that.

        24                  MR. N. TEITLER:  If the Administration had 

        25     come forth with a full bill and we had to discuss 

               COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS                      115

         1

         2     certain aspects and we had something really substantive 

         3     in front of us, then it's another issue.  We don't 

         4     today.  And to pass legislation when you're under the 

         5     gun is the worst way because we don't want to say in 

         6     hindsight that we should have waited.  So yes, we do 

         7     need some time to wait, put together a proper piece of 

         8     legislation, and then let's take this program citywide.

         9                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Thank you very 

        10     much.

        11                  Michael Porcelli.

        12                  MR. M. PORCELLI:  Good afternoon.  My name 

        13     is Michael Porcelli.  I'm in the automobile repair 

        14     business and the insurance claims settlement business.  

        15     I'm a licensed repair shop owner and licensed insurance 

        16     claims adjuster, and I make my living helping consumers 

        17     when they have an automotive emergency, whether 

        18     collision or mechanical. 

        19                  And what we've learned over the past seven 

        20     years that we've been in business, that in this city 

        21     having an accident has become an increasingly horrendous 

        22     experience over the last seven years, and I'm gratified 

        23     to see that you've all asked very astute questions and 

        24     you all seem to be troubled with taking away a 

        25     consumer's rights.  This is, after all, the Consumer 
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         2     Affairs Committee, right?

         3                  What you've heard so far, what I've heard 

         4     this morning is you haven't gotten all the answers to 

         5     all the questions that are troubling you, and the reason 

         6     for that is that the facts just haven't been presented, 

         7     the true facts.  The statement was made that chasing is 

         8     down in the SARD precinct.  Well, I believe that's true, 

         9     but there are reasons for that that have not been 

        10     presented.

        11                  The chasers that operated previously in 

        12     those precincts, it's true they're not operating in 

        13     those precincts today to the extent that they have 

        14     been.  They moved over to the adjacent precincts.  When 

        15     you get reports from the Police Department that say 

        16     chasing is down because the call-your-own-man provision 

        17     has been eliminated, that's also not true.  

        18                  What's down are reports.  The six are down, 

        19     that's true, but there are many reasons for that.  I've 

        20     been personally present at many accident scenes, and I'm 

        21     not in the tow business, but I've witnessed many 

        22     accident scenes where you see the same faces appear at 

        23     every scene like clockwork.  These people show up 

        24     regularly.  The police at the scene must know that these 

        25     same faces keep reappearing, and for whatever reason 
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         2     they're reluctant to summons them.  

         3                  Now it's true in recent years they don't 

         4     come in tow trucks anymore but in cars, or if they do 

         5     come in a truck they hide the truck around the corner.  

         6     They get to the scene, they figure out is it a good job.  

         7     They work the jobs, they call it, and try and sign up 

         8     the job in the street, which has been outlined by this 

         9     Council.  Soliciting in the repair business by companies 

        10     licensed to do towing business has been outlawed for the 

        11     last six or seven years, yet they're still doing it.  

        12     But in most cases now they do not come to the scene with 

        13     the tow truck.

        14                  If SARD goes into effect, as everybody here 

        15     seems to believe is predetermined, what will happen is 

        16     you're not going to eliminate chasing because the people 

        17     that don't get into the SARD program that depend on tow 

        18     trucks to bring them business  --  

        19                  At the previous hearing Mr. Spigner made 

        20     this observation, what are those people going to do, 

        21     will they just fold up and leave town and retire?  I 

        22     don't think so, I think they'll still do whatever they 

        23     have to do to get repair business in their shops, and 

        24     that will mean that they will be out of the towing 

        25     business because they wouldn't be on the SARD program so 
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         2     they're then free to go to the accident scene ahead of 

         3     the police, ahead of the authorized tow truck  --  

         4                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Ahead of the 

         5     accident?

         6                  MR. M. PORCELLI:  They'll have spotters to 

         7     notify them.  You mentioned earlier how they get to the 

         8     scene, they'll have spotters that lead them, they'll get 

         9     to the scene and solicit the repair business in the 

        10     street. 

        11                  Now that's the whole key to this entire 

        12     industry.  Nobody in the towing business under these 

        13     current towing programs is really making a tremendous 

        14     living out of the towing end of the business, they're in 

        15     it for the repair end of the business, as was stated 

        16     earlier.  And mostly it's insurance paid, collision 

        17     repairs and thefts that are the big money makers.

        18                  In other words, for the people that solicit 

        19     the stranger in the street to allow them to take the car 

        20     and repair it, they have to offer them tremendous 

        21     inducements because which one of you here would let a 

        22     total stranger come up to you at an accident scene and 

        23     take away your thirty, forty, $50,000 car when you've 

        24     never heard of this person before.  Who here would trust 

        25     this person to take your second most prized possession?
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         2                  I think you all are troubled by the fact 

         3     that the consumer is not allowed to call his own man.  

         4     Mr. Weiner made the observation that he would like to 

         5     call his dealer and now by law he's prohibited from 

         6     doing that.  I feel that's probably unconstitutional to 

         7     take away a consumer's right in that event.  

         8                  COUNCIL MEMBER WEINER:  You don't have a 

         9     constitutional right to a tower.

        10                  MR. M. PORCELLI:  Okay, I'm not a lawyer.  

        11     But it's definitely not the right thing to do from the 

        12     consumer's perspective.

        13                  Now, these consumers that are subject to 

        14     being towed by these towing companies and solicited for 

        15     their repair business, they have a high probability that 

        16     they will suffer some sort of loss through that process, 

        17     whether an economic loss or an inconvenience problem.  

        18     The wise consumer is one who checks out the people he 

        19     does business with before he gives him his money.  

        20                  As the Consumer Affairs counsel I'm sure 

        21     knows, most consumers that have a problem, when they do 

        22     business with a businessman, it's because they didn't do 

        23     enough research and check out the people they're doing 

        24     business with.  If this Council puts into law any 

        25     program which reduces the consumer's ability to choose 
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         2     who he does business with, you put that consumer in 

         3     additional jeopardy.  

         4                  And the stress people suffer in an accident 

         5     scene, they're not thinking clearly.  They shouldn't be 

         6     forced to do business with people that they're not 

         7     comfortable with.  Unless there's an overwhelming public 

         8     safety need for calling in a stranger to pick up this 

         9     accident, when a consumer has an accident, and there's 

        10     no immediate emergency where a strange tow truck must be 

        11     called for public safety concerns, the consumer 

        12     shouldn't be prohibited from picking up their cellular 

        13     phone and calling their repair shop that they have been 

        14     doing business with for 30 years or calling their motor 

        15     club or their dealership.  

        16                  Chasing has been outlawed for many years 

        17     but it still went on.  And the report you heard from the 

        18     Police Department that the chasing has been reduced or 

        19     eliminated is absolutely not true.  What is true is that 

        20     the summonses are down because police officers many 

        21     times don't write the summons when they witness a chase 

        22     situation.  

        23                  Someone asked before if there was anecdotal 

        24     information from police officers at accident scenes.  

        25     Well, I can give you many firsthand experiences at 

               COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS                      121

         1

         2     accident scenes where I've seen a police officer sit in 

         3     a radio car and right in front of him was a chaser 

         4     writing up a customer on the hood of a car and the 

         5     officer didn't say a word until a member of the 

         6     community board went over and said why is an officer 

         7     allowing this to happen, and at this point the officer 

         8     did get out and summons the individual.  He simply went 

         9     over and told the chaser to leave the area.  So he went 

        10     around the corner and picked up the car after the police 

        11     had left.  

        12                  Chasing has not diminished, and anybody who 

        13     tells you it has does not have the facts.  Anybody can 

        14     follow a tow truck to an accident scene.  If you do that 

        15     today you will see what goes on at the accident scene, 

        16     there is as much chasing as any other.  But not in the 

        17     SARD precincts.  In the SARD precincts I hear that 

        18     chasing is down because it's just not worthwhile for 

        19     them to work in these precincts when they can just work 

        20     in the precinct adjacent that's not covered by the SARD 

        21     program.  

        22                  The consumer is the one that this Council 

        23     is obligated to protect and anything that you pass must 

        24     have the consumer's interest paramount, I think.

        25                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Always.

               COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS                      122

         1

         2                  MR. M. PORCELLI:  Whatever towing program 

         3     is put in place, if it puts the consumer in an economic 

         4     hardship, it's not good for the consumer and the program 

         5     has to be designed to minimize any hardship to the 

         6     consumer.  

         7                  I have an example from yesterday in a SARD 

         8     precinct where my customer had an accident.  The car was 

         9     not able to drive any great distance but it could be 

        10     driven safely a few feet out of the street.  She was 

        11     told by the police she could not call her own motor club 

        12     or her own tow so she had to get the SARD tow.  And a 

        13     second dispatch had to be dispatched from the SARD 

        14     district.  The result was it cost that consumer over 

        15     $280 for a tow that should have cost no more than $75.  

        16     That's a great hardship to our citizens.  

        17                  And the Mayor made a statement yesterday at 

        18     a hearing that said a lot of people have the perception 

        19     t hat it's okay to charge people in New York City more.  

        20     There's an assumption that just because this is New York 

        21     City everything is supposed to say cost more.  Well, 

        22     that shouldn't be true except for a very small 

        23     percentage.  

        24                  It shouldn't cost double or triple to get 

        25     your car towed in New York City above what it costs to 
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         2     get your car towed in Jersey or in Westchester or 

         3     Nassau.  And the effect of the current towing programs, 

         4     especially SARD, is that it increases the cost to the 

         5     consumer and in many cases that cost is passed through 

         6     to the insurance company.  

         7                  And yesterday's hearing was about the fact 

         8     that New York City pays much higher automobile insurance 

         9     rates than surrounding areas and one reason for that is 

        10     the increased cost of towing to the consumer that is 

        11     then passed through to the insurance company and then 

        12     right back to the consumer with higher insurance 

        13     premiums.   

        14                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Let me ask you a 

        15     question.  You said that in the SARD programs that 

        16     chasing is down?

        17                  MR. M. PORCELLI:  That's what I hear.  I 

        18     have no firsthand knowledge of that, but that's what I 

        19     hear.

        20                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  So in looking at 

        21     the consumer, if chasing is down, since there were many 

        22     accidents with people's lives when the chasing was going 

        23     on, I would say that in part the SARD program is 

        24     eliminating chasing which saves lives.

        25                  MR. M. PORCELLI:  But we also heard before 
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         2     that tow truck accidents were up overall citywide.  And 

         3     that's at the same time when accidents in general are 

         4     going down.  So why are tow trucks going up when 

         5     accidents in general are going down?  Something I think 

         6     you should consider.  

         7                  There are some benefits to the SARD 

         8     program.  I don't there are no benefits, and because of 

         9     the fact that these are only experimental precincts 

        10     where SARD is implemented right now the chasers just 

        11     find it's not productive for them to chase in those 

        12     areas.

        13                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Well, part of this 

        14     program was to eliminate the chasing because I believe 

        15     when we thought about this legislation it was because 

        16     there was chasing and people's lives were at stake.  So 

        17     the intent of this legislation is to help people, help 

        18     consumers, save lives.

        19                  MR. M. PORCELLI:  Absolutely.  But let's 

        20     consider the underlying causes.  People are not chasing 

        21     to pick up a fifty or $100 tow job, they're there to 

        22     sign up the heavily insured car where they can make the 

        23     repair business.  

        24                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Exactly, but in the 

        25     SARD program they will pick up the hundred dollar bill.
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         2                  MR. M. PORCELLI:  Yes, but they're still 

         3     hoping to get a good share of the repair business.

         4                  Now the people that don't get on the SARD 

         5     program  --  for the people that get in the SARD 

         6     program, assuming it goes through, the people that get 

         7     in the program, they have a lock on a good market share, 

         8     they have first crack at signing up repair business, and 

         9     that's why they want to be on the program.  

        10                  The people that don't get into that 

        11     program, and not everybody that's current in the towing 

        12     business is going to be allowed in the program  --  in 

        13     fact, we heard testimony earlier that the most 

        14     professional people in the towing industry don't operate 

        15     repair businesses, they're strictly in the vehicle 

        16     transport business.  They pick up cars and trucks and 

        17     transport them from place to place.  Those are really 

        18     the most professional people that we have in the city in 

        19     that business, they're not in the repair business, and 

        20     they're being excluded from these programs.  

        21                  So I think that's another thing you have to 

        22     consider, why you want to eliminate the most 

        23     professional people in an industry from being allowed to 

        24     participate in that industry.

        25                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  I want to thank you 
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         2     very much for your testimony.  We have to move along.

         3                  MR. M. PORCELLI:  Just one more thought.  

         4     The presumption that SARD will stop chasing is a fantasy 

         5     because the people that do not get into the SARD 

         6     program, they will chase that accident in cars, they'll 

         7     get in one way or another and they'll try to sign up the 

         8     repair business.  They'll let the SARD come and tow the 

         9     car and hope that they can have the motorist authorize 

        10     the tow truck to take the car to their shop rather than 

        11     the SARD shop.

        12                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Thank you.

        13                  Paul Rubenfeld, our last witness.

        14                  MR. P. RUBENFELD:  Thank you very much, 

        15     Madam Chairman.  I feel very comfortable in my back-up 

        16     position here, as always.  Thank you again.

        17                  I'm going to be the only one that's going 

        18     to tell you this this afternoon.  I'm going to give you, 

        19     only if it's acceptable, firsthand information, not 

        20     secondhand information, not hearsay information.  I was 

        21     heavily involved, as your staff knows, in making the 

        22     SARD program.  I operate a SARD company.  I made the 

        23     private dispatch system, I operate a private dispatch 

        24     patch system.  So I can teLl you only from firsthand 

        25     information.  
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         2                  And I have gone to hundreds of SARD 

         3     accidents and I have gone to many, many thousands of 

         4     DARP accidents and I have gone to many, many thousands 

         5     of more accidents before DARP and before SARD.

         6                  I think Councilman Weiner articulated it 

         7     rather eloquently, and I'm sorry he's not here to hear 

         8     my comments about what he had to say in the beginning 

         9     before he jumped on the commissioner here, about why if 

        10     the SARD program, and if I understood him, if the SARD 

        11     program is successful and if, and I think you also 

        12     alluded to the fact that if it was a pilot for eight 

        13     months and then it was extended for an additional 12 

        14     months and now it operated for 20 months very 

        15     successfully, why make another pilot.  

        16                  It's obvious that it makes somebody look 

        17     bad if you keep making pilot demonstration programs.  If 

        18     it's been successful, make it permanent.  If it's not 

        19     been successful, eliminate it.  But to go ahead and give 

        20     it another 18 months I don't think is in the best 

        21     interests of anybody concerned.

        22                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  I think that we all 

        23     agree with that.

        24                  MR. P. RUBENFELD:  Now if you recall, and I 

        25     hate to be repetitious, but I have to be at this point 
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         2     and of course everybody has said it, so I will be 

         3     brief.  My original four recommendations when I came 

         4     before you two weeks ago was, number one, make calling 

         5     your own man permanent, and I do have both documentation 

         6     and both anecdotal and empirical and all these other 

         7     things, I have all of these at your command when you 

         8     wish to have them, I do have all these figures.  

         9                  But they do prove regardless of the few 

        10     comments that were made, the provision of calling your 

        11     own man is successful.  So I heartily agree that it be 

        12     made a permanent part of this law or any towing law 

        13     that's going to be made in the future.     

        14                  As far as the original SARD programs, there 

        15     have been no negative comments against them except some 

        16     slight ones by ourselves in the beginning when it seemed 

        17     that consumer complaints were a little bit high.  But I 

        18     think that was satisfied when Commissioner Matteo said 

        19     that the numbers weren't sufficient to draw a 

        20     conclusion from that.  

        21                  Being that those three areas have been 

        22     successful and this pilot program can now be made 

        23     permanent, that can be put on the side and be forgotten.

        24                  Now we're dealing with Staten Island.  I 

        25     didn't mention Staten Island because it only started 
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         2     last April.  There are some problems there, there are 

         3     many kinks to be worked out.  They can't be 

         4     computerized, they're all on slips of papers.  And there 

         5     are things that have to be done and improved there.  And 

         6     so I say no, don't make Staten Island permanent but 

         7     extend it another 18 months and see what happens with 

         8     Staten Island.

         9                  Now as far as the rest of the city, there 

        10     is no reason in the world why SARD can't at a reasonable 

        11     speed be spread throughout the entire city.  It is true 

        12     that different precincts follow possibly different 

        13     procedures but these procedures don't have to be 

        14     stipulated by this Council.  These procedures can be 

        15     handled by DCA with their procedures and with these 

        16     rules, which is easier to be done and much more flexible 

        17     than coming to this higher body.  

        18                  So the provision should be made in the 

        19     current legislation not to name a number, as was 

        20     presented last, the last presentation by the 

        21     commissioner, that it be seven additional precincts, it 

        22     should be that SARD should be implemented in the rest of 

        23     the city in all precincts as long as practically 

        24     possible.  

        25                  And if there has to be a date put on it, 
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         2     then maybe the date of 18 months, which is an arbitrary 

         3     date, but maybe you could use that as a sort of a guide.  

         4     Maybe we should that say that the DCA is to be mandated 

         5     by this Council in the next 18 months to spread SARD to 

         6     the entire city.

         7                  Now my last point was about the CAD system 

         8     that was mentioned by Captain Volpe from the patrol 

         9     office.  I had mentioned in my last recommendation, 

        10     which didn't seem to pick up anyone's attention the last 

        11     time, but maybe they weren't familiar with it, I had 

        12     mentioned again that you put in the law that the Police 

        13     Department when they do go to the CAD system, when they 

        14     go to the voiceless digital communications, which will 

        15     be quite a while because eventually the technology will 

        16     be such that it will work out, that the Police 

        17     Department should know that they must continue to give 

        18     the accidents to the SARD companies, which hopefully at 

        19     that time will be most of the city.  

        20                  And obviously the reason for that is 

        21     because without the immediate notification at the same 

        22     time as the sector car, the accidents, that the program 

        23     will not be successful because it's based on the fact 

        24     that the notification is extremely fast, and at the same 

        25     time the police officer gets it so you don't have to 
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         2     notify, and if you have to go back to land line then the 

         3     SARD program is going to be a failure and you're going 

         4     to have the other elements of chasing crawling back in 

         5     again.  

         6                  Now one thing that I think was not 

         7     mentioned here, and this is my last statement, 

         8     hopefully, is that the goal of SARD when it was 

         9     initially made was two-fold.  The main goal was to 

        10     eliminate the chasing tow truck and all the benefits 

        11     that come to our residents and visitors because of no 

        12     more chasing tow trucks.  

        13                  And the second was to the last response was 

        14     to eliminate the inordinate amount of time that the 

        15     police spend on a non-SARD accident, this time 

        16     translated into money are more important than that, 

        17     translated into their being able to go to another scene 

        18     that's not an accident but something may be of much 

        19     higher priority that involves lives is very important, 

        20     whereas before SARD came along and currently under DARP, 

        21     and one of the failures of DARP, of course, is that the 

        22     police officer and his partner are stuck on that 

        23     accident, waiting for the response of a tow truck to get 

        24     there.  And I think this is extremely important.

        25                  I want to again thank you for my 
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         2     opportunity to speak to you.

         3                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  I have only one 

         4     question to ask you.  You said you had some data 

         5     compiled?

         6                  MR. P. RUBENFELD:  Yes, I believe I'm the 

         7     only one that has it.  

         8                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  On what basis did 

         9     you compile the data?

        10                  MR. P. RUBENFELD:  I made an arrangement 

        11     with the Police Department and DCA at the inception of 

        12     the private dispatch system to, number one, log all of 

        13     the accidents in the precinct 24 hours a day.  I then 

        14     made another arrangement whereby I would computerize all 

        15     of this information, which I have done.  So I have the 

        16     original logs.  And then I put them into the computer. 

        17                  I think the Council had been privilege to 

        18     some of the sheets from the individual companies.  We 

        19     take those sheets and put them in a main log, which I 

        20     didn't give them at this particular time because they 

        21     didn't request it and I didn't really know what they 

        22     wanted to glean out of the information when they 

        23     requested that information.  So I didn't mention 

        24     anything at all because I didn't know what was on their 

        25     mind when they made their initial investigation prior to 
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         2     the first hearing.  

         3                  But all of our phones, our incoming calls, 

         4     our outgoing calls, calls from 911, from the local 

         5     precincts, or DARP, our calls that the individual 

         6     companies in my particular case are all on tape, as has 

         7     been required by rule, and we've been abiding by this.  

         8     Whether it's necessary or not is another thing, but it's 

         9     not for you people at this particular time.  

        10                  But that's why I say I talk to you from 

        11     firsthand information, which is a little different than 

        12     some of the prior people giving testimony.  

        13                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Do you have data on 

        14     tow related accidents in your precinct?

        15                  MR. P. RUBENFELD:  No, I do not have data 

        16     on accidents of tow trucks, no.  I have data on the 

        17     calls that we get of accidents that go over the police 

        18     radio.  I'm sorry if I didn't make myself clear on that 

        19     point.

        20                  CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ:  Thank you very, 

        21     very much.

        22                  And this meeting is adjourned.

        23                  (Written testimony submitted by Peter 

        24     O'Connell, Empire State Towing and Recovery 

        25     Association):
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         2                  As you may recall from my testimony of 

         3     September 19, 1996, I am counsel to the Empire State 

         4     Towing and Recovery Association, ESTRA, a statewide 

         5     association of tow truck operators that has 

         6     approximately 90 members who are located in and around 

         7     New York City.

         8                  I would like to take this opportunity to 

         9     express my client's views with respect to Intro 852, 

        10     which seeks to amend and extend certain provisions of 

        11     the DARP and SARD programs.

        12                  In my earlier testimony I recommended that 

        13     the DARP and SARD programs be extended for a period of 

        14     three months so that several provisions of the city's 

        15     towing code  --  many of which are beyond the scope of 

        16     DARP and SARD  --  could be amended to accommodate 

        17     recent changes in federal law.

        18                  Upon further reflection, I am now doubtful 

        19     that the issues described in my earlier testimony can be 

        20     properly addressed in so short a time.  On the other 

        21     hand, the 18 month extension that is sought in Intro 852 

        22     is far too long.

        23                  I now recommend that the provisions 

        24     described in Section 2 of Intro 852, which, through 

        25     possible inadvertence, include matters that are beyond 
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         2     the scope of SARD and DARP, be extended for a period of 

         3     six months, until April 28, 1997, and that a report that 

         4     addresses all issues relating to changes in federal law 

         5     be submitted to the City Council by no later than 

         6     February 1, 1997.

         7                  Because of its expanded scope, the report 

         8     should be submitted by the Corporation Counsel, who 

         9     shall be assisted by the police commissioner and the 

        10     commissioner of Consumer Affairs.  I enclose a copy of a 

        11     proposed bill that incorporates these changes to Local 

        12     Law 112 of 1993.

        13                  Lastly, I would like to point out that it 

        14     makes no sense to make certain provisions of the DARP 

        15     program, i.e., the prohibition against calling your own 

        16     tow, permanent, while the DARP program itself is still 

        17     subject to a sunset clause.  The enclosed bill addresses 

        18     this defect as well.

        19                  Once again, I appreciate this opportunity 

        20     to appear before this committee and I ask that you 

        21     contact me if you require further information with 

        22     respect to the foregoing.

        23                  (Time noted:  1:20 p.m.)  
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         2                       CERTIFICATE

         3

         4     STATE OF NEW YORK  )

                                  ) ss.

         5     COUNTY OF NEW YORK )

         6

         7               I, LINDA BAYLES, a Stenotype Reporter and 

         8     Notary Public in and for the State of New York, do 

         9     hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 

        10     accurate transcript of the within proceeding.

        11               I further certify that I am not related to 

        12     any of the parties to this action by blood or marriage, 

        13     and that I am in no way interested in the outcome of 

        14     this matter.

        15               IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my 

        16     hand this ________ day of _______________ 1996.
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        19                             ___________________________

        20                             LINDA BAYLES
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         7                 I, LINDA BAYLES, a Notary Public in and for 

         8     the State of New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid 

         9     to be a true and accurate copy of the original of my 

        10     stenographic notes.
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        13                             ___________________________

        14                               LINDA BAYLES
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